
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, AUGUST 9, 2021 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Carroll Crossing, Section 3 – Rezoning Request (Ordinance 21-O-081).

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
➢ May 25, 2021 Budget Workshop #1; and
➢ May 27, 2021 Budget Workshop #2.; and
➢ June 7 Budget Public Hearing Minutes; and
➢ June 14, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes.

2. Set Public Hearing for September 13, 2021: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request.

3. Set Public Hearing for September 13, 2021: Aquatic Holdings – Rezoning Request.

4. Set Public Hearing for September 13, 2021: Alfred Martin McLawhorn – Rezoning Request.

5. Set Public Hearing for September 13, 2021: Pitt County Farms, LLC – Rezoning Request.

6. Direct Clerk to Certify Sufficiency Worthington Road Interconnect Site Annexation
(Resolution 21-R-081).

7. Direct Clerk to Certify Sufficiency Old Tar Road Pump Station Annexation
(Resolution 21-R-082).



8. Fire Department Sprinkler System.

9. Budget Amendment 2021-2022-1.

10. Tax Settlement FY 2020-2021.

11. Charge the Tax Collector with collection of the 2021-2022 tax levy.

12. Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee Items:
➢ Parade Permit Application and Fee Exemption;
➢ Recreation Park Parking Lot Use and Traffic Pattern Changes;
➢ Suspend Winterville Recreation Park Hours Limitation;
➢ Placement of Signs and Banners; and
➢ Usage of the Parks and Recreation Bathroom Facilities.

IX. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Recreation Advisory Board Composition (Ordinance 21-O-082).

2. Acceptance of State Loan; Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation, Project No: CS370879-03 for
$1,974,200 from NCDEQ (Resolution 21-R-083).

X. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Stormwater MS4 Permit – Notice of Violation (Resolution 21-R-084).

2. Wooten Company – Task Order No. 32 – Stormwater Management Plan.

3. School Resource Officer contract with Pitt County Schools.

4. Eleven at Main – Preliminary Plat.

XI. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Curb Project at A.G. Cox (Councilman Moore).

2. Designation of Railroad Street as Martin Luther King Street and speed bumps for the same
area. (Councilwoman Roberson).

XII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Thursday, August 12, 2021 from 4:00 pm – 8:00 pm Rescheduled Back to School Splash
and National Night Out; Winterville Square.

2. Monday, August 16, 2021 at 7:00 pm Planning & Zoning Board Meeting; Town Hall
Assembly Room.

3. Tuesday, August 17, 2021 at 7:00 pm Board of Adjustment Meeting; Town Hall Assembly
Room.

4. Thursday, August 26th – Saturday, August 28th Watermelon Festival.

5. Monday, September 6, 2021 Labor Day; Town Offices Closed.

XIV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XV. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Carroll Crossing, Section 3 – Rezoning Request (Parcel 04819). 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification to Adjacent Property 
Owners, Address Labels, Staff Report, and Ordinance 21-O-081 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Le & Lam Properties, LLC. 

Location: Church Street Ext south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road. 

Parcel Number: 04819. 

Site Data: 5.295 acres. 

Current Zoning District: CN. 

Proposed Zoning District: R-8 CD. 

❖ Proposed Conditions: All duplexes shall have brick fronts.

❖ Planning and Zoning Board voted unanimously to recommend approval on May 17, 2021.

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on May 6, 2021.

❖ Notification was posted on the site on April 29, 2021.

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request. 

3



4



5



6



 

Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\REZONING\21-054 - Carroll Crossing, Section 3.docx 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

TO BE REZONED FROM CN TO R-8 CUD 
LE & LAM PROPERTIES, LLC 

TRACT 1 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

APRIL 26, 2021 
 
Beginning at a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) said point 
being the southwestern corner of the William David Harrell and wife Carolyn Harrell Property 
as described in Deed Book 3264, Page 157 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds. From the 
above described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 
 
Leaving the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) and with the southern line 
of above referenced William David Harrell and wife Carolyn Harrell Property,  
S 63°04’56” E 156.11’, thence S 63°03’57” E 106.62’, thence S 09°00’47” W 729.38’ to a 
point on the northern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane, thence with the northern right-of-way of 
Jeremy Lane, N 61°21’44” W 109.66’ to the point of curvature, thence with a curve to the 
left an arc distance of 119.69’, said curve having a radius of 375.00’ and a chord bearing 
N 70°31’15” W 119.38’ to the point of reverse curvature, thence with a curve to the right 
an arc distance of 46.44’, said curve having a radius of 30.00’ and a chord bearing  
N 35°20’00” W 41.94’ to a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church 
Street), thence with the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street),  
N 09°00'47" E 721.67’ to the point of beginning containing 4.193 acres and being a portion 
of the property described in Deed Book 4079, Page 773 of the Pitt County Register of 
Deeds. 

  

7



 

Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\REZONING\21-054 - Carroll Crossing, Section 3.docx 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

TO BE REZONED FROM CN TO R-8 CUD 
LE & LAM PROPERTIES, LLC 

TRACT 2 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

APRIL 26, 2021 
 
Beginning at a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) said point 
being the northwestern corner of the Franklin R. Fields and wife, Andrea O. Fields Property 
as described in Deed Book 3884, Page 270of the Pitt County Register of Deeds. From the 
above described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 
 
With the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street), N 09°00’47” E 142.33’ to the 
point of curvature where the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) intersects 
the curved southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane, thence with the curved southern right-of-
way of Jeremy Lane an arc distance of 48.10’, said curve to the right having a radius of 
30.00’ and a chord bearing N 54°56’32” E 43.11’ to the point of compound curvature, 
thence with a curve to the right an arc distance of 97.68’, said curve having a radius of 
315.00’ and a chord bearing S 70°14’44” E 97.29’ to the point of tangency, thence  
S 61°21’44” E 131.06’, thence leaving the southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane,  
S 09°00’47” W 195.72’, thence N 62°05'36" W 264.24’ to the point of beginning containing 
1.102 acres and being a portion of the property described in Deed Book 4079, Page 773 
of the Pitt County Register of Deeds. 

8



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, August 9, 
2021 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public 
Hearing on the following proposal: 
 
Le & Lam Properties, LLC has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcel 04819 (5.295 
Acres) as shown on the attached map from Neighborhood Commercial (CN) to R-8 CD, with 
the condition that all duplexes shall have brick fronts.  The R-8 Residential District is a quiet, 
medium density neighborhood consisting of single-family residences along with limited home 
occupations and private and public community uses. 
 
Copies of the Ordinance are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town Hall or at 
www.wintervillenc.com and are available for public inspection by contacting 
bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 
 
To maintain the safety of Town residents, Town Council, and Town Staff, the Winterville Town 
Council meeting will allow limited in-person attendance due to COVID-19 provisions and the 
meeting will be available electronically. The Agenda is available on the Town website at 
www.wintervillenc.com/agendas. The public is encouraged to watch the Town Council’s 
meeting live on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those that wish to address the 
Town Council during the Public Hearing should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 215-2344 or 
via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com to register by one business day before the 
meeting at 5:00 pm. 
  
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Public Hearing – Carroll Crossing, Section 3 Rezoning. 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday July 28, 2021 
and Wednesday, August 4, 2021. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com 

9

http://www.wintervillenc.com/
mailto:bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com
http://www.wintervillenc.com/agendas
http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com
mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 
PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 
Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 

 
Town Council 

Rezoning Request 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, August 9, 
2021 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public Hearing 
on the following proposal: 
 
Le & Lam Properties, LLC has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcel 04819 (5.295 Acres) 
as shown on the attached map from Neighborhood Commercial (CN) to R-8 CD, with the condition 
that all duplexes shall have brick fronts.  The R-8 Residential District is a quiet, medium density 
neighborhood consisting of single-family residences along with limited home occupations and private 
and public community uses. 
 
Copies of the Ordinance are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town Hall or at 
www.wintervillenc.com and are available for public inspection by contacting 
bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 
 
To maintain the safety of Town residents, Town Council, and Town Staff, the Winterville Town 
Council meeting will allow limited in-person attendance due to COVID-19 provisions and the meeting 
will be available electronically. The Agenda is available on the Town website at 
www.wintervillenc.com/agendas. The public is encouraged to watch the Town Council’s meeting live 
on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those that wish to address the Town Council during the 
Public Hearing should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 215-2344 or via email to 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com to register by one business day before the meeting at 5:00 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

 

10

http://www.wintervillenc.com/
mailto:bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com
http://www.wintervillenc.com/agendas
http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


  

Le & Lam Properties LLC 
2364 Blackstone Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 

     

 Franklin R. Fields 
Andrea O. Fields 
2947 Church Street Ex 
Winterville, NC 28590 

     

Keith Haight 
Diana Haight 
226 B Jeremy Lane 
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Linda V McLawhorn 
2351 Old Creek Road 
Greenville NC 27834 

     

 Betty S Fields 
3010 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 Toshi S James 
3010 B KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

GAIL L CRISTIANO 
DENNIS M CRISTIANO 
3004 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

JARET LOGAN 
AMY LOGAN 
3004 B KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

AKR HOLDINGS LLC 
824 RUPERT DR 
GREENVILLE NC 27858 

  

  

JOHN H EVANS 

2305 FIELDSTONE PL 

WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
     

DAVIS R SMITH, JR 
2956 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

JEFFEREY D HASSELBACH 
222 PEPSI WAY  
AYDEN, NC 28513 

  

  

MURRAY TRUESDALE  
KUMIKO TRUESDALE 
2802 A HALEY CT 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 RICHARD S COLTRAIN 
3903 ARROWHEAD ROAD 
AYDEN, NC 28513 

     

EDWARD WETHERINGTON  
756 STRICKLAND TERRACE 
KINSTON, NC 28504 

  

  

AUSTIN DIXON 
2803 B HALEY CT 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

CHRISTINE K SMITH 
2805 A HALEY CT 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 TAMARA L RUPKE 

2805 B HALEY CT 

WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
  

  

SHERON E GREEN 
2944 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

WILLIAM DAVID HARRELL 
CAROLYN HARRELL 
5838 REEDY BRANCH RD 
AYDEN NC 28513 

     

ROBERTS COMPANY 
133 FORLINES RD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

HAPPY TRAIL FARMS LLC 
PO BOX 1863 
GREENVILLE NC 27835 

     

 JACHIE POHL 
2995-A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  
 11



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Le & Lam Properties, LLC  

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST CN to R-8 CD 

CONDITIONS All duplexes will have brick facades.  

LOCATION Church Street Extension south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Rd 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 04819 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on May 6, 2021. Notification was posted on site on April 29, 
2021. 25 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 5.295 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR Daycare 

E R-8 CD Residential 

W I Manufacturing 

S AR Residential 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) 

 
R-8 CD 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Shopping facilities for goods 
and services to serve a 
neighborhood. 

Medium Density; single-family 
residential; limited home 
occupations. 

12



 

2 
Staff Report 

  

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision plan required 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations. See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Church Street Ext – 180 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

13



 

3 
Staff Report 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed R-8 CD zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible with the 
general character of the area. 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Suburban Residential character 

area. The requested R-8 CD zoning district is generally consistent with this character 

area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Suburban Residential - General Character: 

• Low to medium density single family residential. This land use type was identified as 

one that is appropriate and valued. This flexible land use type is appropriate for many 

parts of the planning area. 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 5.295 acre property is currently vacant. The property North of the request is zoned AR 
with a daycare. West of the request is zoned Industrial (Roberts Company). South of the 
request is zoned AR and is a single-family home. East of the request is zoned R-8 CD and is 
a duplex subdivision (Carroll Crossing). 
 
The R-8 CD rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area. 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 5.295 acres from CN 

to R-8 CD. 

 

14



Ordinance No: 21-O-081 

Page 1 of 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 155 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
 
 

WHEREAS, Le & Lam Properties, LLC. has requested amendment of the Zoning 
Ordinance of the Town of Winterville by rezoning of the property described herein of 
Neighborhood Commercial (CN) to R-8 CD; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of this zoning amendment was held, at the 
Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 p.m. on August 9, 2021, after due notice publication on July 28, 
2021 and August 4, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by first class mail to the 
owners of all parcels, as shown on the County Tax Records, adjoining the parcel under 
consideration, certification of which has been to the Winterville Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by posting a rezoning 
request notice on the subject property; 
 

WHEREAS, the Winterville Town Council finds that the proposed rezoning is in 
compliance with the Town of Winterville’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, 
North Carolina that: 
 

Section 1. The Town of Winterville Zoning Ordinance, Official Zoning Map, is hereby 
amended by rezoning the following described track from CN to R-8 CD, with the following 
condition:  All duplexes shall have brick facades. 
 

Le & Lam Properties, LLC (Carroll Crossing, Section 3), a 5.295-acre tract land located 
on Church Street Ext., Tax Parcel 04819, and being more particularly described on the 
attached legal description provided below. 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
REZONED FROM CN to R-8 CD 
LE & LAM PROPERTIES, LLC 

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 
 

Tract 1:  Beginning at a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) said 
point being the southwestern corner of the William David Harrell and wife Carolyn Harrell 
Property as described in Deed Book 3264, Page 157 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds.  
From the above described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 

 

Leaving the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) and with the southern line of 
above referenced William David Harrell and wife Carolyn Harrell Property,  

S 63°04’56” E 156.11’, thence S 63°03’57” E 106.62’, thence S 09°00’47” W 729.38’ to a point 
on the northern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane, thence with the northern right-of-way of Jeremy 
Lane, N 61°21’44” W 109.66’ to the point of curvature, thence with a curve to the left an arc 

15



Ordinance No: 21-O-081 

Page 2 of 2 

distance of 119.69’, said curve having a radius of 375.00’ and a chord bearing N 70°31’15” W 
119.38’ to the point of reverse curvature, thence with a curve to the right an arc distance of 
46.44’, said curve having a radius of 30.00’ and a chord bearing N 35°20’00” W 41.94’ to a point 
on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street), thence with the eastern right-of-way 
of NCSR 1714 (Church Street), N 09°00'47" E 721.67’ to the point of beginning containing 4.193 
acres and being a portion of the property described in Deed Book 4079, Page 773 of the Pitt 
County Register of Deeds. 

 

Tract 2:  Beginning at a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) said 
point being the northwestern corner of the Franklin R. Fields and wife, Andrea O. Fields 
Property as described in Deed Book 3884, Page 270of the Pitt County Register of Deeds.  From 
the above described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 

 

With the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street), N 09°00’47” E 142.33’ to the point 
of curvature where the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) intersects the curved 
southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane, thence with the curved southern right-of-way of Jeremy 
Lane an arc distance of 48.10’, said curve to the right having a radius of 30.00’ and a chord 
bearing N 54°56’32” E 43.11’ to the point of compound curvature, thence with a curve to the 
right an arc distance of 97.68’, said curve having a radius of 315.00’ and a chord bearing S 
70°14’44” E 97.29’ to the point of tangency, thence S 61°21’44” E 131.06’, thence leaving the 
southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane, S 09°00’47” W 195.72’, thence N 62°05'36" W 264.24’ to 
the point of beginning containing 1.102 acres and being a portion of the property described in 
Deed Book 4079, Page 773 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds. 

 
End of Legal Description 

 
Section 2. This action shall be shown on the Official Zoning Map. 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 
 

Adopted this 9th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

16



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

• May 25, 2021 Budget Workshop #1; and 

• May 27, 2021 Budget Workshop #2.; and 

• June 7 Budget Public Hearing Minutes; and 

• June 14, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

17



 

Page 1 of 6 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, MAY 25, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

BUDGET WORK SESSION #1 MINUTES 
(LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE AND ELECTRONIC MEETING VIA ZOOM) 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in Budget Work Session #1 on the above date at 6:00 PM in the 
Town Hall Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Hines gave the Invocation and Blessed the meal. 
 
DINNER: 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed everyone. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hines to approve the 
agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Recommended Budget 
 
Town Manager Parker presented the FY 2021-2022 recommended budget by reviewing the draft 
budget message Version #1 letter below: 

18



 

Page 2 of 6 

 
 

19



 

Page 3 of 6 

 
 

20



 

Page 4 of 6 

 
 
Council discussed the non-town agency funding and items in the budget. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hines to approve Non-
Town Agency funding the same as last year plus $5,000 each for Boys and Girls Club and Pitt 
County Softball League. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0 
 
Town Manager Parker the items in the budget message. Council asked questions on specific line items. 
Councilman Moye asked about Hillcrest Park improvements. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston 
noted the need for other improvements. Councilman Moore asked about vacant positions. Councilman 
Moye asked about upcoming work. Assistant Town Manager discussed the sewer rehabilitation project. 
Council discussed work ongoing in town. Town Manager Parker discussed requests in line items of 
water and sewer, CMSD, stormwater. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted the vacancies in public works, water and sewer, electric, police, and 
administration. She said some will require re-advertisements. Councilwoman Roberson asked for an 
update on each position. Town Manager Parker said she would follow-up with Council. Council and 
Staff continued discussion on specific items in the budget message. 
 

21



 

Page 5 of 6 

Town Manager Parker provided a handout outlining the Cemetery expansion project that would cost 
approximately $50,000 not including paving. Councilman Smith said we need to provide for the 
cemetery. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to place 
Priority 1 to the Cemetery Project item. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0 
 
Discussion moved to the Multi-Purpose Building. Town Manager Parker said we do not have any land 
for the building yet. Assistant Town Manager Williams said we have not had any progress with sellers 
we have been in contact. Councilwoman Roberson said we need to have progress and move towards 
the goal. Councilman Hines noted it was a challenge on location, building, then staffing. Councilwoman 
Roberson said we need to move forward on this project. Councilman Hines said west side needs some 
recreation facilities, the Town is growing over there. Councilman Moore noted the Greenway Project is 
just sitting there. Councilwoman Roberson said we need an inside facility. Town Manager Parker said 
the Sara Law Complex was once available. Town Manager Parker ask Council for direction. 
Councilwoman Roberson said get and locate some land. Town Manager Parker we welcome affordable 
land. Councilman Moye asked how much money is the Town willing to spend. Councilwoman Roberson 
this is a priority. Council discussion continued on land for multipurpose building including fact that now 
is not time to buy land. 
 
Motion made by Motion Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moye to place 
Priority 2 to finding land for the Multi-Purpose Building item. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0 
 
Councilman Hines asked if we have a Recreation Plan. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said 
yes, completed sometime around 2016 - 2017. Councilwoman Roberson said whatever was on the 
plan, more will be needed now. Councilman Moore said we looked at property earlier and it was way 
overpriced. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted will get American Rescue Plan funds of approximately $2.9 million, $1.45 
million this year. Finance Director Bowers discussed some general eligible reimbursements broadband. 
 
Council took a short break and then resumed. 
 
Finance Director Bowers noted that sewer and stormwater may be used. Assistant Town Manager 
Williams said clarifications on stormwater quantity, not quality are possible uses, numerous uses in 
water, sewer, and stormwater. Town Manager Parker said Staff will get clarifications and approach 
Council with recommended uses. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson said Kent Jordan died, we need to pass a resolution. 
 
Town Manager Parker said she would return with a balanced budget. Councilman Smith noted he 
would be unable to be here Thursday. Town Manager Parker said she would keep the meeting to 1 
hour. 
 
RECESS TO THURSDAY, MAY 27, 2021 AT 6:00 PM – TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to recess the 
meeting to Thursday, May 27, 2021 at 6:00 pm. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting 
recessed at 8:21 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 9th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 

22



 

Page 6 of 6 

 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

23



 

Page 1 of 5 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
THURSDAY, MAY 27, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

BUDGET WORK SESSION #2 MINUTES 
(LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE AND ELECTRONIC MEETING VIA ZOOM) 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in Budget Work Session #2 on the above date at 6:00 PM in the 
Town Hall Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman (absent) 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Hines gave the Invocation and Blessed the meal. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed everyone. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
the agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0 
 
DINNER: 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Recommended Budget. 
 
Town Manager Parker presented the FY 2021-2022 recommended budget by reviewing the draft 
budget message Version #2 letter below and updated forms provided: 

24



 

Page 2 of 5 

 
 

25



 

Page 3 of 5 

 
 

26



 

Page 4 of 5 

 
 

27



 

Page 5 of 5 

 
Town Manager Parker discussed CMSD increase this year. Councilman Moore arrived. Councilman 
Moye asked about construction along Hwy. 11. Town Manager Parker noted this is the CMSD pump 
station. Town Manager Parker noted the added $50,000 for cemetery expansion in the budget. This 
budget places stress on finances with no revenue increases. Councilman Moore said he was glad to 
see staff increase. Councilwoman Roberson asked how much adjustment would be needed to balance 
the electric. Electric Director Sutton stated the increases needed to meet debt service of next year 
Town Manager Parker noted Pitt County has dropped to Tier 2 economic status, keep an eye on 
changes and stay up to speed on the warning signs. Councilman Moye asked if vehicles were included. 
Town Manager Parker said vehicle needs were included. Councilman Moore said new house numbers 
are down from last year. Town Manager Parker growing town, appreciate patience. Councilman Moore 
asked when we will set cemetery rates, when will determine use of American Recovery Plan funds. 
Town Manager Parker said we could have a short workshop at the pleasure of the Council. Mayor 
Jackson thanked the staff. Town Manager Parker said it was a team effort, thanks to all. Mayor Pro 
Tem Hines said thanks to all of Town Staff. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to adjourn the 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 6:40 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 9th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

28



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

MONDAY, JUNE 7, 2021 - 7:00 PM 

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

(LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE AND ELECTRONIC MEETING VIA ZOOM) 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Budget Public Hearing on the above date at 7:00 PM in the 
Town Hall Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem (absent) 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Smith gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed everyone. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Recommended Budget. Town Manager Parker noted that 
there were no changes to the recommended budget presented at the May 27, 2021 Budget Work 
Session #2. 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor. No one 
spoke in favor. Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition. No one spoke in 
opposition. 
 

29



 

Page 2 of 2 

Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 7:05 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 9th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

30



 

Page 1 of 20 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

MONDAY, JUNE 14, 2021 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

(LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE) 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilwoman Roberson gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Manager Parker requested to amend the Agenda to add an additional Proclamation. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
amended agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: Town Clerk Harvey gave a summary of the Proclamations. 
  

31



 

Page 2 of 20 

1. Flag Day June 14, 2021. 

 
 

32



 

Page 3 of 20 

2. Father’s Day June 20, 2021. 

 
 

33



 

Page 4 of 20 

3. Boys and Girls Club Week June 21-25, 2021. 

 
 

34



 

Page 5 of 20 

4. Juneteenth Day 2021. 

 
 

35



 

Page 6 of 20 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
1. Kenneth Smith Property (Brookstone, Phase 2) – Rezoning Request (Parcel 70650): Planning 

Director Jones gave the following presentation: 
 
 

 
 

 
 

36



 

Page 7 of 20 

 
 

 
 

 

37



 

Page 8 of 20 

 
 

 
 

 

38



 

Page 9 of 20 

 
 

 
 

 

39



 

Page 10 of 20 

 
 

 
 

 

40



 

Page 11 of 20 

Councilman Moye asked if Phase 1 was complete. Planning Director Jones said 4 or 5 permits have 
been obtained and there are wetlands issues on some. Councilman Moore asked what other towns 
inform people further from proposed rezoning. Planning Director Jones asked outside the 500 feet 
required. Attorney Lassiter said Town can notify further out, however, wise to stay at statutory level. 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
annexation request. 
 
Kenneth Smith, owner, said smaller lot helps to average out size to cut down costs. Councilman Moye 
asked if he had done any developments this size? Kenneth Smith responded Magnolia Ridge, many 
more. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the rezoning request.  
 
Councilman Moore said we have too many R-10 lots, they result in domestic problems. Planning 
Director Jones said over 1,200 feet away from Colonial Woods. Councilman Moore said more than 
minimum distance, however, less domestic distance. Mayor Pro Tem Hines noted need to keep prices 
down. Councilman Moore said people moving out. Councilman Smith we have R-8 and R-10 across the 
street. Kenneth Smith noted Colonial Woods is on septic tanks and does not have curb and gutter. 
Councilwoman Roberson asked about drainage at Magnolia Ridge. Kenneth Smith said an Engineer 
will design drainage and will be approved by state. He noted a drainage canal divides this parcel. 
Mayor Pro Tem Hines said the plat will show the design. Councilwoman Roberson said she wants to 
make sure there are no problems. 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing closed. Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or 
any more questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hines to approve the 
Kenneth Smith Property (Brookstone, Phase 2) Rezoning Request (Parcel 70650). Motion carried 
4-1, Councilman Moore opposed. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 
1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 

➢ May 10, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. Cancellation of Deed of Trust from Lina Green to Winterville CDBG Program. 
3. Cancellation of Deed of Trust from Paul Lynch to Winterville CDBG Program. 
4. Schedule the Public Hearing for Rezoning Request of Carroll Crossing, Section 3 – (Parcel 04819) 

for August 9, 2021. 
5. Approval of Budget Amendment 2020-2021-4. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hines to approve the 
consent agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: None 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
 
1. 2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance: Town Manager Parker noted that the Budget Ordinance 

reflects totals from the Draft Balanced Budget as presented and discussed at the Budget Public 

41



 

Page 12 of 20 

Hearing held on Monday, June 7, 2021. 
 

 

42



 

Page 13 of 20 

 

 
 

43



 

Page 14 of 20 

 
 

44



 

Page 15 of 20 

 
 

45



 

Page 16 of 20 

 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the 
2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
2. Board of Adjustment Appointments: Planning Director Jones noted that the Board of Adjustment 

consists of five (5) Members; four (4) members of the board shall be appointed by the Town Council 
and shall be residents of the Town of Winterville, and one (1) member shall be appointed by the Pitt 
County Board of Commissioners, all for overlapping terms of three years. There is also one (1) 
alternate regular member and one (1) alternate ETJ member. 

 
Staff recommended reappointing the following Board of Adjustment Members to three year terms 
effective immediately with terms expiring June 30, 2024. 

• Edward Reynolds. 

• Alfred Phillips. 

• Jeffrey Briley (ETJ) re-appointed by the Pitt County Board of Commissioners in June 2021. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to appoint Edward 
Reynolds, Alfred Phillips, and Jeffrey Briley to the Board of Adjustment with terms expiring 
June 30, 2024. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
3. Recreation Advisory Board Appointments: Parks and Recreation Director Johnston noted that the 

Recreation Advisory Board is made up of six (6) resident members, three (3) non-resident (ETJ) 
members, and one (1) alternate member that may be a resident or non-resident (ETJ). The 
Recreation Advisory Board has four (4) members whose term expires June 30, 2021 and have 
requested to be appointed to an additional term. Following is list of said members and their 
membership type: Johnny Fleming (Resident), Victoria Hawkins (Resident), John Relford 

46



 

Page 17 of 20 

(Resident), and Carolyn Wanczyk (Alternate). 
 
Staff recommends that all current members, as listed above, be re-appointed to an additional two (2) 
year term on the Recreation Advisory Board. 
 
Staff would like to note that there are three applications on file in which applicant indicated interest in 
Recreation Advisory Board: 

• Amy Brothers - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as only priority. 

• James Jones - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number two (2) priority. 

• Katrina Jones - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number two (2) priority 
 
Council and Staff discussed the make-up on the Board and location restrictions, it was determined a 
change would be in the best interest. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to amend the make-
up of the Board to seven (7) resident members, two (2) non-resident (ETJ) members, and one (1) 
alternate member that may be a resident or non-resident (ETJ). Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to re-appoint 
Johnny Fleming (resident), Victoria Hawkins (resident), John Relford (resident), Carolyn 
Wanczyk (alternate), and Amy Brothers (resident). Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
4. American Rescue Plan Discussion/Direction: Town Manager Parker noted that Staff is prepared to 

have a discussion on the ARP funds the Town will be receiving and ask for Council direction on 
how these funds are to be expended. 

 
Town Manager Parker reviewed the process. Finance Director Bowers discussed the ARP funding 
topic. Town will receive $2.9 million over 2 years. Rules are established by the U.S. Treasury. They 
will create uses. Careful usage and audit requirements will be important. Assistant Town Manager 
Williams noted we can use on projects that we have pursued in the past, such as water and 
stormwater that we did not receive funding. These include water hydraulics project in certain areas, 
estimated at approximately $532,000. Also, other projects on the books like the big projects including 
Nobel Canal drainage project not funded. This project had multiple phases including phases 4 and 5. 
The upper end at W.H. Robinson School and Railroad Street, Worthington Street to Tyson Street, 
estimated at approximately $1.97 million. If combined with bank stabilization, estimated at 
approximately $2.7 million. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Williams said banks alone estimated at approximately $90,000. Councilman 
Moye asked what type of work. Assistant Town Manager Williams said work in critical areas. 
Councilman Smith asked what project the staff recommends. Mayor Pro Tem Hines said use it all. 
Town Manager Parker said we have more project than money, over 2 years. Town Manager Parker 
asked Council for direction. Councilman Smith said of the items presented, Railroad Street is priority 
1. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hines to approve Railroad 
Street Drainage as #1 priority for use of ARP funds. Motion carried, 3-2. Councilman Moye and 
Councilwoman Roberson opposed. 

47



 

Page 18 of 20 

 
Councilwoman Roberson the motion excluded stabilization. Town Manager Parker said Staff will update 
all projects presented. Councilman Moye said he wants prices for all projects. Finance Director Bowers 
said we can bring back projects Staff needed a place to put funds. Town Manager Parker noted a lot to 
be done to get things going. Councilman Moye Said numbers will be brought back. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson noted a fire hydrant on Knot Street. Assistant Town Manager Williams said 
Staff is trouble shooting the problem. 

 

 

48



 

Page 19 of 20 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
Resolution 21-R-061 accepting American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: None 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: None 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 
Planning Director Jones noted that Staff is working with Britt Development. A Public Hearing will be held 
in August. Police Chief Willhite and Parks and Recreation Director Johnston discussed the National 
Night Out event and other events in the spring held in conjunction with the Easter Egg Hunt. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements. 
 
1. Rescheduled Touch-A-Truck: Thursday, June 17, 2021 from 4:00 pm until 8:00 pm at Winterville 

Square. 252 Main Street. 
2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. (Limited In-Person Attendance and Electronic via ZOOM). 
3. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, June 22, 2021 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center. 
4. Happy Birthday, USA! Thursday, July 1, 2021 from 4:00 pm until 8:00 pm at Winterville Square. 252 

Main Street. 
5. Town Offices Closed: Monday, July 5, 2021 for the Independence Day (Observed). 
6. No Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, July 12, 2021. 
7. Back to School Splash & National Night Out: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 from 4:00 pm until 8:00 pm 

at Winterville Square. 252 Main Street. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: None 
 
Councilman Moore: None 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson: The Spot on Tyson Street with a steel plate. Assistant Town Manager 
Williams said the spots will be repaved. 
 
Councilman Smith: None 
 
Councilman Moye: Are Computer upgrades taking place, do we keep up with employees and if they 
have any problems, will we compensate them. 
 
Councilman Hines: What is the status of Attorneys’ contract. Attorney Lassiter said work at pleasure of 
the Board at an hourly rate $200/hour, this has been for 4-5 years. 
 
Manager Parker: None 
 
Mayor Jackson: 4th of July 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to adjourn. Motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:42 pm. 

49



 

Page 20 of 20 

 
Adopted this the 9th day of August 2021. 

 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

50



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386). 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 13, 2021. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification of Rezoning, Address 
Labels to Adjacent Property Owners, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Sutton Capital Group. 

Location: Intersection of Reedy Branch Road and Davenport Farm Road. 

Parcel Numbers: 12045, 23479, and 38386. 

Site Data: 94.372 acres. 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

Proposed Zoning District: R-10 CD, R-8 CD, and R-6 CD. 

❖ Proposed Zoning Districts:  R-10 (33.773 Acres), R-8 (30.579 Acres), R-6 (22.613 Acres). 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on June 7, 2021 and July 

6, 2021. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on June 8, 2021. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the rezoning request (7-1) on July 19, 2021. 

Conditions: 

(1) All lots will be single family residential. 

(2) 8-foot Side Setbacks. 

(3) All homes will be a minimum of 1,500 SF (Heated). 

(4) The development will consist of fiber cement board exterior siding on all homes with some 

elevations consisting of brick or stone accents. 

(5) All homes will include a 2-car garage. 

(6) Dedication of 30-foot Greenway easement along Swift Creek. 

(7) Development will include amenity area with pool and cabana. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 13, 2021. 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



F 
SW

IF
T C

RE
E K

 
TH

E 
CE

NT
ER

LIN
E 

O PR
O

PE
RTY

 LI
NE

 
CA

NA
L I

S
TH

E 

UJ
 

--
--

-...
 ,

(
 

... 
A

R
_)

I I \ I I 

---
- --...

 
(

 RA
-20

)
... _

___
 _ 

VA
C

A
N

T
 

O
N

 
R

A
L

P
H

 C
T

LA
JY R

T
 E

T
A

L.
NP

O
R

 
·, 

D
A

V
E

 
E 

F I
LE

 2
0

02
-7

2
 

E
S

TA
T 

/
 

/
 

/
 

/
 

/
 

7
 

/
 

--
-......

 

(
- RA

-2
0

)
' 

--
--

--
-

R
A

L 
W

O
O

D
E

D
/A

G
R

IC
�

�TiE
S

 O
F

B
O

A
R

D
 O

J UT N
��

y
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

P
IT

T
 c

o
�

" 18
3

5. 
P

G
 3

0
0

 
M

B
 6

2,
 P

G
 1

44
 

/
 

SI
N

�
-;:

E-
��

M
IL

 y
 N

DO
R

IS
 S

AL
MO

 
NO

BL
ES

 
D

B
 H

---4
8,

 P
G

 3
68

 
\ 

/
 \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ 

---
, 

(
- A

R 
_ _

,.
... ___

 _ 
\ \ 

C
H

U
R

C
H

 N 
DO

O
R

, I
NC

. 
F

TH
EO

PE
 

CH
U

R
CH

 O
 

DB
 39

3
0

, P
G

 40
 

\ \ \ \ 

L
E
G

E
N

D
 

HT
 O

F 
WA

Y 
UN

E 
R/

W L 
:

 �
/ �

IM
UM

 B
U UIL R�N

{ o 
BA

CK
 O

F 
CU

RB
MB

 
-

A C
K 

OF
 C

 
E 

B/
B 

=
 

B
 

G
 

IR
ON

 P
IP

 
EI

P
 

= 
E X

IS
�! � ON

 P
IP

E 
MO

NU
ME

NT
 

SI
P

 
=
_

s g
l S

TIN
G 

c
o :

� :
�

E KA
LO

N 
NA

IL
EC

M 
---:..._

 E
X!

ST
!N

G 
P

 
KA

LO
N 

NA
IL

 
EP

KN
 = 

SEf
 P

AR
KE

R
�p

�
 R

AD
IU

S 
CH

 - = 
CH

OR
D OF

 C
UR

VA
TU

RE
 

P
C 

=
 

P
OI

NT
 OF

 T
A

NG
EN

CY
D 

CU
RVAT

UR
E

P T
 =

 
P

il
�l

� T
 O

F 
CO

MP
Ro siN

 CU
RVA

TU
RE

P
CC

 =
 P

OI
NT

 O
F 

REY
E 

P
RC

 '.: 
NO

 P
OI

NT
 S

ET
NP

S -- P
OW

ER
 P

OL
E 

P
ED

ES
TA

L
pp

 
-

-
TE

LE
P

HO
NE

TP
ED

 -
VE

RT
IN

V 
= 

IN
 

F 
CU

RB
 

TC
 =

 T
OP

 O
 OF

 P
AV

EM
EN

T
EP

 
=
 

ED
GE

 OF
 B

AN
K 

TB
 =

 _ T i�
NT

ER
LIN

E 
C/

L 
-

AN
HO

LE
MH

 =
 � R

E 
HY

DR
AN

T
FH

 =
 WAT

ER
 V

ALV
E 

\ \ \ 

\ \ \ \_
 

\ \ \ 

l
 I I 

\ \ \ \ \ 

T
RA

C
T

 1
 

-
--'

�
PA

�R�· C
;E;;:L

-;;#
;;12

W04'4
5; 

--
-

IA
R

E
A

T
O

 

PR
O

PO
S

E
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 

(§:)
 

B
E

 R
E

ZO
N

E
D

: 3
3.

77
3 

A
C

R
E

S
 
I 

pT
 _

 

l"'
 �
 

1 I I 
m

E
N

E
R

A
L 

N
O

T
E

S
 

G
 

EO
M

ET
RY

. 
. 

y
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

TE
 G

 D
E

E
D

 B
O

O
K

 
A

LL
 A

R
E

A
S

 C
A

�C E
� �

6
�

�
 �

82
, P

A
�

E
 ;

�
9 5:�

g
F 

T
H

E
 P

IT
T 

1.
 

R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
: D

 D
 D

E
E

D
 B

O
O

K
 3

26
 ,

 
2

.
3

2 6
5 , 

P
G

 5 :;;' G
1 ;

TE
R 

OF
 D

EE
D S

C
O

U
N

TY
R

 

3
52

.1
8'

 
,3

8.
, W

 S
80

.6
0'

(T
O

T.
) 

8 
11

°
14

 

... -
--

--
... ,

 

22
8.

42
' 

( 
A

R
 .,.

J 

'-
-

--
�

R
IC

U
LT

U
R

A
L

SI
N

G
L E

 F
A

M
IL

Y
r

 F
A

M
IL

Y 
L

T
P

.
J A

M
E

S
 L

� �
:

�
. P

G
 48

2
 

I I I 

WV
 :

 G
AT

E 
VA

LV
E 

GV
 = 

BA
LL

 V
AL

VE
 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 P
IP

E
B V 

- _
 R

EI
NF

OR
CE

D
MIT

AL
 P

IP
E

RC
P

 
=

 C
OR

RU
GA

TE
D 

. 
P

A
R

C
E

L 
#1

20
45

: 
O

W
N

E
R

 T
A

X
 

H
 

J E
N

K
IN

S
 F

A
M

IL
Y

, 
L

L
C

E
R

IC
 U

H
L

E
N

B
R

O
C

K

. 

D
A

V
IS

O
N

 a
nd

, 
CM

P -- C
AT

CH
 B

AS
IN

 SE
CT

IO
N 

CB
 - -

FLA
RE

D 
EN

D 
FE

S 
-

OT
 T

O 
SC

AL
E

-"'.r-
-

N
 

O
W

N
E

R
 T

A
X 

P
A

R
C

E
L 

#2
34

79
: 

O
W

N
E

R
 T

A
X 

PA
R

C
E

L 
#3

83
86

: 

B
E

V
E

R
L

 y

E
T

A
L

. 
. 

R
L

Y
 D

A
V

IS
O

N
, 

B
E

V
E

 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T 
... -

- -
( 

A
R

, ....
 __ _

 
B

E
 R

E
ZO

N
E

D
: 3

0.
57

9 
A

C
R

E
S

 
I

IA
RE

A
TO

 

\ I I I I I I \ I I I I 

I I I I I I I I 

-l--
-sTo

"2'4z''w
7cii:ii:'r

c��
�:,_

_s1'o'a
�§"iN':

eD4Ts'-
g

 

'25
" w

 
2

0
4.

15
' 

/:;
 

S 
10

°0
4 

s
 1

0
"3

2
'42

" w
 

3
0

0
.67

' (
:�

=�
) 

\ 
SI

N
G

LE
 F

A
�

�
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 

_J_
 _ 

-\_____
 

1 

B
R

A
N

C
H

 F
 

I 
R

E
E

D
Y 

DB
T-

40
, P

G
3

0
2
_

 -

RO
A D

L
 

-
-

Y
B

RA
N

C
H 

-
S

R
 1

13
1 

-
R

E
E

D
 H

A
L

T
 P

U
B

LI
C

) 
N

C
 

(6
0'

!}
'!!

 2
2'

 A
S

P
 -

r
 

I I I 

·--
-...

 , 
( ...

 - A
R 

)
, _ _

__ _
 

I I 
_J

 
-
--

--
,,

 
. 

(
A

R
_ ,,

. 

'�
/,;

G
R

IC
U

L T
U

R
A

L
SI

N
G

L E
 F

A
M

�
IT

T
L

E
 F

AR
M

,
ST

EL
�:

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
 

A 
D

B
 7

23
, P

G
 5

40
 

R
S

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S
E

S
 

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 O

�
�

�
 O

F
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

-
=

�
w0i

1 T
rH

� ii1N
£ �1

D =O �
�F

�
�

�
�

;
;

�
�

Z�E
i�N I ! N

VE
ST

M
� �

6
 

R
U

ST
EE

S 
O

F 
PR

O
PE

R
TI

E !_
NC

H 
R oA

o

N 
BO

AR
D

 O
F

T 
N

IT
Y 

C
O

LL
EG

E 
44

22
 R

EE
D Y

L:
 N

C 
28

59
0 

C
HU

R
C

H 
O

F 
TH

E 
O

PE
 

PI
TT

 C
O

M
M

U
 

. 

W
IN

TE
R

VI
L 

' 
p 

0
. B

O
X 

70
07

 
83

5 

O
O

R
 I

NC
 

AD
 

G.R
EE

NV
ILL

E, 
NC

 27
 

LE
N

BR
O

C
K

 

" 
. 

••=
�

 

c =
r n

, 
-

" · =
 

45
84

 R
EE

D :
:

 N
C

 2
85

90
 

PI
TT

 C
O

M
M

UN
IT

Y 
C

O
LL

E
G

E
 

44
32

 R
EE

D ILY LE
B NC

 28
59

0 

W
IN

TE
R

VI
L 

' 
. 

W
IN

TE
R

V 
' 

D
AI

L 
BO

W
EN

 
p G_ Ro E_ E

B No vx
,,7 ,�0 .7 NC

 2
78

35

R
EE

D
Y 

BR
AN

C
H

 F
_ W

B 

J
U

D
Y

 

O
R

T
 F

A
R

M
 R

O
A

D
53

5 D
AV

E�
� E 

NC
 2

85
90

 

TN
Y 

C
H

U
R

C
H 

RA
NC

H 
R

OA
D

W
IN

TE
RV

 
' 

PI
TT

 C
O

U 
IFT

H 
ST

R
EE

T
44

57
 R

EE
D Y LE

B N
C

 2
8 5

9 0
 

M
O

N 
N

O
BL

ES
 

17
17

 W
ES

T L: 
NC

 27
83

4 
W

IN
TE

R
VI

L 
, 

D
O

R
IS

 S
AL

 R
T 

FA
R

M 
R

OA
D

 
GR

EE
NV

IL 
, 

E 
FA

M
IL

Y 
LT

P.
 

4 5
5 O

AV
0 1�

� �
 NC

 28
59

0 

LI
TT

LE
 F

AR
M

, 
JA

M
ES

 L
IT

T\
 FA

R
M 

R
OA

D

W
IN

TE
R 

, 

ST
EL

LA
 

H
IP

 
4 5

0 
OA

VE
N ��

R NC
 28

59
0 

U
R

M
AN

 D
AV

IS
 a

nd
 

A 
PA

R
TN

ER
: GE

 R O
AD

W
lN

TE
R

VI
L 

' 

TH
 

NA
 D

AV
IS

 
21

7 K
IN

G IL G LE ED NC
 27

85
8

w
ife

, E
D

 
OR

T 
FA

R
M 

R
OA

D
GR

EE
N
V 

' 
4 5

0 D
AV

EN
� E 

NC
 28

59
0

W
!N

TE
RV

IL 

R
AL

PH
 C

LA
YT

J:
 E

TA
L.

D
AV

EN
PO

R
T,

 FA
RM

 R
OA

D
54

7 D
AV

EN
� �

R:
c 

28
59

0 
W

IN
TE

RV
IL 

I"'
 

I 

-- -
--,

 
t·

· o
&

I_
)

, ...
... __

_ _ 
CO

UR
SE

 
L1

 

S
IT

E
 

i I 

V
IC

IN
ITY

 M
A

P
 

L
IN

E
 

T
A

B
L

E
 

BE
AR

IN
G 

.
 

DI
ST

AN
CE

 
N 

75
·0

 2'
24

" 
E 

80
.2

2'
 

S
 

A
1J

LO
IN

G
 

"' 
F

U
Lf

O
R

O
 

W
O

O
D

E
D

 
CO

M
M

U
NI

TY
 

P
IT

T
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 

L2
 

L3
 

L4
 

N 
12

"4
8 •

5r
 w

 

S 
89

"0
 1'

48
" 

E 

N 
30

" 4
4'

09
" 

E 

45
.0

8'
 

19
.7

1'
 

34
.6

4'
 

T
R

A
C

T
3

 

PA
R

CE
L #

38
38

6 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 Z

O
N

IN
G

 

G:)
 

A
R

E
A

 T
O

 B
E

 R
E

ZO
N

E
 

. . 22
 6

13
 A

C
R

E
S

 
I 

D
B

 3
46

, P
G

 4
82

 
M

B
39

, P
G

 1
96

 

-----
----- --

--
-...

 , 
( ...

 O
&

I_
.J 

... _
__ _

 
C

O
LL

E
G

E
 

PI
TT

 CO
U

N
TY

 
D

B
 2

80
6,

 P
G

 4
82

 
M

B
 7

4,
 P

G
 1

2 /
 

I
 

I I I 

/
 

/
 

L5
 

N 
33

 "03
'0

1"
 E

 
34

.1
5'

 

L6
 

N 
2 9

·0
3'

17
" 

E 
32

.1
7'

 

L7
 

N 
2 3

"5
3'

44
" 

E 
40

. 0
1' 

LB
 

N 
2 3

"4
8'

27
" 

E 
57

. 
.
 

70
'

L
9

 
N 

l8
"4

7'
3 2

" 
E 

38
 .0

3'
 

L1
0 

N 
15

•4
5 '

45
" 

E 
45

 .9
8'

l
H

 
·N

 · 8
91

1-'
40

"-
·E

 
67

.7
4'

 

L1
2 

N 
74

11
'1

0"
 E

 
44

.5
6'

 

L1
3 

N 
55

·2
4'

41
" 

E
24

.8
3'

 

L1
4 

s 
74

'3
2'

12
" 

E 
36

.1
3'

 

L1
5 

N 
86

"5
4'

53
" 

E 
37

.1
2'

 

L1
6 

S 
79

"2
1'

53
" 

E 
32

.3
2'

 

L1
7 

N 
49

•0
3•

33
" 

E 
39

.9
2'

 

L1
8 

N 
5 5

·4
3'

14
" 

E 
25

.5
0'

 

L1
9 

N 
35

1
9'

30
" 

E 
25

.2
3'

 

l
2

0
 

N 
22

"5
5'

00
" 

E 
53

.0
3'

 

L2
1 

N 
53

"5
6'

2 9
" 

E 
47

.5
7'

 

L2
2 

N 
74

'13
'2

0"
 E

 
84

.2
2'

 

L2
3 

N 
72

·5
2 '

57
" 

E 
50

.6
3'

 

L2
4 

N 
89

"5
0'

3 0
" 

E 
63

.2
3'

 

L2
5 

N 
46

"4
8'

11
" 

E 
17

.1
1'

 

L2
6 

S 
79

•4
3•

35
" 

E 
40

. 0
6'

L2
7 

S 
53

·2
0'

22
" 

E 
29

 7
6'

L2
8 

S 
74

•4
5•

54
" 

E 
83

.4
6'

 

L2
9 

N 
14

"0
2'

10
" 

E 
27

.8
3'

 

L3
0 

N 
11

1
7'

34
" 

E 
81

. 7
1'

 

L3
1 

N 
10

"4
8'

53
" 

E 
58

.6
2'

 

L3
2 

N 
12

·2
9'

35
" E

 
28

.8
9'

 

L3
3 

N 
14

"0
5'

27
" 

E
 

31
.8

3'
 

L3
4 

N 
17

'0
5'

33
 "E

 
34

.8
7'

 

L3
5 

N 
18

"4
4'

53
 • E

 
48

.2
3'

 

L3
6 

N 
19

"3
0'

5 5
• E

 
31

.4
3'

 

L3
7 

N 
20

'18
'1

 8"
 E

 
36

.7
4'

 

L3
8 

N 
23

"0
5'

 28
" 

E 
35

.0
6'

 

L3
9 

N 
25

"4
3'

 32
" 

E 
30

.5
3'

 

L4
0 

N 
29

"0
4 '

07
" 

E 
49

.9
1'

 

L4
1 

1'
41

" 
E 

N 
32

"4
 

31
.9

3'
 

L4
2 

N 
37

"1
 2'

33
" 

E 
38

.0
3'

 

L4
3 

N 
35

·3
 5•

39
" 

E 
22

.7
6'

 

C
U

R
V

E
 

TA
B

L
E

 

CU
RV

E 
BEA

RI
NG

 
CH

OR
D 

RA
DI

US
 

LE
NG

 TH
C1

 
, 

C2
 

C3
 

C4
 

N 
80

'4
7'

33
" 

E 

N
 

86
"5

7'
16

" 
E 

s 
86

"5
7'

03
" 

w
 

s 
77

'3
1'

36
" 

w
 

48
0.

69
' 

22
33

.5
7'

 

36
7.

02
' 

10
26

.6
5'

 

38
8.

60
' 

10
86

.6
5'

 

22
2.

66
' 

21
73

.5
7'

 

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 
IN

G
S 

AN
D

 D
IS

TA
�

�
�S N s:

R
O

VI
D

ED
 B

Y
N

O
TE

: T
H

E 
BE

A 
N 

FR
O

M
 IN

FO
R

M
 AN

D
 D

O
ES

 N
O

T 
M

AP
 W

ER
E 

TA
�

 O
PI

S 
W

EB
SI

TE
 BY

 T
HI

S 
FI

R
M

. 
TH

E 
PI

TT
 C

O
U 

N 
AC

TU
AL

 S
UR

VE
Y 

R
EP

R
ES

EN
T 

A 

4"
1.

 63
 

36
9 .0

0
39

0 
.7

1 

22
 2.7

5 

I 
____

 I 
-----

-----
-----

f l \ 

C
O

LL
E

G
E

 
P

IT
T

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
 

D
B

 3
46

, P
G

 4
82

 
M

B 
39

, P
G

 1
96

 

C
LO

SU
R

E 
C

H
EC

K
 B

O
U

N
D

AR
Y 

CH
EC

KE
D:

 N
R

W
DA

TE
: 0

5/
27

/2
02

1 

I TO
TA

L 
A

R
 E

A
TO

 B
E

R
 E

ZO
N

E
D

: 9
3.

96
5 

A
C

R
E

S 
I 

1
0

0
' 

S
O

' 
0

 
1
0

0
' 

2
0

0
' 

3
0

0
' 

G
RA

P
H

IC
S

 C
A

L
E

· 
1
"
"'

 1
0

0
' 

TA
X 

PA
R

; 7� �
1�

�
� �

�
TA

X 
M

A
P

 :
G

E
L 

#2
34

79
 

TA
X 

p 
67

5-
17

-1
68

9
TA

X 
M

A
;

:
C

E
L 

#3
83

86
 

TA
AX P 

#4
67

51
-8

0-
19

91
 

TA
X

M
 

T1
 O

F 1
 

C
 

SH
EE

 
M

A
P

 

L 
LL

 
R

E
ZO

N
IN

G
 

C
A

P
 IT

 A
 

' 
. 

� __:
J

S �U �T �T � �O
N :

=
�

�
�

;
�

�3
2 �

6 5 �
P;

G i
53

2 
EE

O 
BO

O
K 

' 
E E

D
S

K
 8

8 2
 P

AG
E 1

99
 AN

OD
� N

TY
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 O
F 

D
 

EE
O 

BO
O

 
' 

HE
 P

IT
T 

C
 

RE
FE

RE
NC

E 0�
32

65
, P

G
 5

37
 O

F
T 

C
O

U
N

TY
, 

N
.C

. 

AN
D

 D
EE

D 
BO

 

W
N

S
H

IP
, P

IT
T

 
W

IN
T

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 T
O

 

R
O

UP
N 

C
AP

IT
AL

G
 

A
P

P
LI

C
A

N
T:

 S
U

T
TiU

TH
 B

O
U

LE
V

A
R

D
 #

10
6 

R
E

S
S

: 
11

01
 S

 
TI

E 
N

C
 2

82
03

 
A

D
D

 
C

H
A

R
LO

 
' 

VE
D·

 
MW

B

P
H

O
N

E
: 

58
8 

A
PP

R
O 

· 

(7
 

• 
LJ C

EN
S E,jl

 
SU

R
VE

YE
D:

 

04
) 2

26
-2

 

[
�

�
�

�
N �IA

;-
-

fo
�

=
�

�
�

�

· -
D

es
1g

 
c-

3 

DA
TE

, 

n
 

49
 

05
/2

8/
20

21
 

Ba
l d

Wi
n 

t 
P

i\
 

[
�D

RA �
W

N :
: =-

�N :RW

;-
-i

-;
�

=
� 1"

�a
�1 o

�o · _J

C
o
n s

u l
t a

n l N
GS � 

P lAN
NI N

G 
M

W
B 

SC
AL

E:
 

SU
RVEY

 
CH

EC
KE

D
:

£N
G!N

EE
RJ �

 -AR
LIN

G TO
N 

s o
u irs

� �
i 6

.13
90

 
17

00
- D

, ,
L 

NC
 2

78
58

 
GR

EEN\ll
u.,.:.

, 

59



 

Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\REZONING\21-032 - Sutton Group.docx 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
TO BE REZONED FROM AR TO R-10 

SUTTON CAPITAL, LLC 
TRACT 1 

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 
MAY 28, 2021 

 
Beginning at a point on the western right-of-way of NCSR 1131 (Reedy Branch Road), said 
point being the northeastern corner of the Church of the Open Door, Inc. Property as 
described in Deed Book 3930, Page 40 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds, said point also 
being located S 11°14’38” W 580.60’ as measured along the western right-of-way of NCSR 
1131 (Reedy Branch Road) from a point where the western right-of-way of NCSR 1131 
(Reedy Branch Road) intersects the southern right-of-way of NCSR 1128 (Davenport Farm 
Road). From the above described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 
 
Leaving the western right-of-way of NCSR 1131 (Reedy Branch Road) and with the 
northern line of above referenced Church of the Open Door, Inc. Property, S 77°15’38” W 
2,196.36’, thence N 21°04’34” W 222.47’, thence N 11°02’43” E 398.00’, thence  
S 78°13’33” E 196.64’, thence N 75°02’24” E 80.22’, thence N 12°48’57” W 45.08’, thence  
S 89°01’48” E 19.71’, thence N 87°20’49” E 178.23’, thence N 01°22’25” W 198.14’ to a 
point on the curved southern right-of-way of NCSR 1128 (Davenport Farm Road), thence 
with the curved southern right-of-way of NCSR 1128 (Davenport Farm Road), an arc 
distance of 481.63’, said curve to the left having a radius of 2,233.57’ and a chord bearing 
N 80°47’33” E 480.69’ to the point of tangency, thence N 76°23’48” E 700.66’ to the point 
of curvature, thence with a curve to the right an arc distance of 369.00’, said curve having 
a radius of 1,026.65’ and a chord bearing N 86°57’16” E 367.02’ to the point of tangency, 
thence S 82°44’56” E 78.05’, thence leaving the southern right-of-way of NCSR 1128 
(Davenport Farm Road), S 11°11’48” W 228.82’, thence S 82°51’42” E 208.33’ to a point 
on the western right-of-way of NCSR 1131 (Reedy Branch Road), thence with the western 
right-of-way of NCSR 1131 (Reedy Branch Road), S 11°14’38” W 352.18’ to the point of 
beginning containing 32.682 acres and being a portion of the property described in Deed 
Book 882, Page 199 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds.  

60



 

Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\REZONING\21-032 - Sutton Group.docx 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
TO BE REZONED FROM AR TO R-8 

SUTTON CAPITAL, LLC 
TRACT 2 

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 
MAY 28, 2021 

 
Beginning at a point on the northern right-of-way of NCSR 1128 (Davenport Farm 
Road), said point being the southwestern corner of the Reedy Branch FWB Church as 
described in Deed Book T-40, Page 302 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds. From the 
above-described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 
 
With the northern right-of-way of NCSR 1128 (Davenport Farm Road),  
N 82°44’56” W 189.42’ to the point of curvature, thence with a curve to the left an arc 
distance of 390.71’, said curve having a radius of 1,086.65’ and a chord bearing S 
86°57’03” W 388.60’ to the point of tangency, thence S 76°23’48” W 701.73’ to the point 
of curvature, thence with a curve to the right an arc distance of 222.75’, said curve 
having a radius of 2,173.57’ and a chord bearing  
S 77°31’36” W 388.60’, thence leaving the northern right-of-way of NCSR 1128 
(Davenport Farm Road), N 04°19’44” W 418.31’, thence S 20°27’52” W 238.11’, thence 
S 84°39’36” W 201.92’, thence N 82°14’18” W 178.64’, thence  
N 30°44’09” E 439.61’, thence N 30°44’09” E 34.64’, thence N 19°56’50” E 147.78’, 
thence N 33°03’01” E 34.15’, thence N 29°03’17” E 32.17’, thence  
N 23°53’44” E 40.01’, thence N 23°48’27” E 57.70’, thence N 18°47’32” E 38.03’, thence 
N 15°46’46” E 45.98’, thence N 75°30’25” E 113.66’, thence  
N 89°11’40” E 67.74’, thence S 83°58’05” E 89.23’, thence N 87°49’41” E 96.34’, thence 
N 74°11’10” E 44.56’, thence N 55°24’41” E 24.83’, thence S 74°32’12” E 36.13’, thence 
N 86°54’53” E 37.12’, thence S 79°21’53” E 32.32’, thence  
N 40°21’25” E 87.05’, thence N 49°03’33” E 39.92’, thence N 65°43’14” E 25.50’, thence 
N 35°19’30” E 25.23’, thence N 22°55’00” E 53.03’, thence N 53°56’29” E 47.57’, thence 
N 74°13’20” E 84.22’, thence N 72°52’57” E 50.63’, thence  
N 89°50’30” E 63.23’, thence N 46°48’11” E 17.11’, thence S 79°43’35” E 40.06’, thence 
S 53°20’22” E 29.76’, thence S 64°11’04” E 240.69’, thence  
S 74°45’54” E 83.46’, thence S 77°52’04” E 222.95’, thence S 73°47’02” E 121.19’, 
thence S 15°25’37” W 342.44’, thence N 85°58’08” E 146.00’, thence  
S 10°04’25” W 204.15’, thence S 10°32’42” W 300.67’ to the point of beginning 
containing 37.579 acres and being a portion of the properties described in Deed Book 
3265, Page 532 and Deed Book 882, Page 199 both of the Pitt County Register of 
Deeds.  

61



 

Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\REZONING\21-032 - Sutton Group.docx 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

TO BE REZONED FROM AR TO R-6 
SUTTON CAPITAL, LLC 

TRACT 3 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

MAY 28, 2021 
 
Beginning at a point on the western right-of-way of NCSR 1131 (Reedy Branch Road), 
said point being the southeastern corner of the Pitt Community College Property as 
described in Deed Book 346, Page 482 and recorded in Map Book 49, Page 95 both of 
the Pitt County Register of Deeds. From the above-described beginning, so located, 
running thence as follows: 
 
With the western right-of-way of 1131 (Reedy Branch Road), S 25°50’32” W 48.75’ and 
S 24°50’56” W 108.87’, thence leaving the western right-of-way of NCSR 1131 (Reedy 
Branch Road), N 66°26’39” W 144.82’, thence  
S 24°03’50” W 176.06’, thence N 73°53’34” W 94.24’, thence N 73°47’02” W 121.19’, 
thence N 77°52’04” W 222.95’, thence N 74°45’54” W 83.46’, thence  
N 64°11’04” W 240.69’, thence N 53°20’22” W 29.76’, thence N 79°43’35” W 40.06’, 
thence S 46°48’11” W 17.11’, thence S 89°50’30” W 63.23’, thence  
S 72°52’57” W 50.63’, thence S 74°13’20” W 84.22’, thence S 53°56’29” W 47.57’, 
thence S 22°55’00” W 53.03’, thence S 35°19’30” W 25.23’, thence  
S 65°43’14” W 25.50’, thence S 49°03’33” W 39.92’, thence S 40°21’25” W 87.05’, 
thence N 79°21’53” W 32.32’, thence S 86°54’53” W 37.12’, thence  
N 74°32’12” W 36.13’, thence S 55°24’41” W 24.83’, thence S 74°11’10” W 44.56’, 
thence S 87°49’41” W 96.34’, thence N 83°58’05” W 89.23’, thence  
S 89°11’40” W 67.74’, thence S 75°30’25” W 113.66’, thence N 16°21’28” E 101.18’, 
thence N 14°02’10” E 27.83’, thence N 11°17’34” E 81.71’, thence  
N 12°42’30” E 118.19’, thence N 10°00’57” E 104.93’, thence N 11°30’49” E 126.50’, 
thence N 10°48’53” E 58.62’, thence N 12°29’35” E 28.89’, thence  
N 14°05’27” E 31.83’, thence N 17°05’33” E 34.87’, thence N 18°44’53” E 48.23’, thence 
N 19°30’56” E 31.43’, thence N 20°18’18” E 36.74’, thence N 23°05’28” E 35.06’, thence 
N 25°43’32” E 30.53’, thence N 29°04’07” E 49.91’, thence  
N 32°41’41” E 31.93’, thence N 37°12’33” E 38.03’, thence N 35°36’39” E 22.76’, thence 
S 66°58’35” E 1,820.79’ to the point of beginning containing 22.613 acres and being a 
portion of the property described in Deed Book 3265, Page 537 of the Pitt County 
Register of Deeds. 

62



2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 
PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 
Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 

 
Planning and Zoning 

Rezoning Request 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Planning and Zoning Board will meet on 
Monday, June 21, 2021 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order 
to consider the following request: 
 
Sutton Capital Group has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcels 12045, 23479, and 
38386 (94.372 Acres) as shown on the attached map from Agricultural- Residential (AR)) to R-10, R-
8, and R-6 Zoning Districts.  The R-10 and R-8 Residential Districts are quiet, medium density 
neighborhoods consisting of single-family residences along with limited home occupations and private 
and public community uses.  The R-6 Residential District is a quiet, relatively high-density 
neighborhood consisting of single-family and two-family residences along with limited home 
occupations and private and public community uses 
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Tall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
**The Town of Winterville will be keeping measures in place in an ongoing effort to mitigate the 
spread of COVID-19.  These measures include limiting physical attendance at the meeting, 
employing social distancing, and implementing remote participation.  The meeting is open to the 
public; however, limited attendance will be allowed to attend in-person due to COVID-19 provisions 
and the meeting will be available electronically.  The public is encouraged to watch the meeting live 
on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos).  Those that wish to address the Planning and Zoning 
Board during the meeting should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 215-2344 to register by one 
business day before the meeting at 5:00 p.m.  The public may submit written comments to the 
Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590, or via email 
to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63

http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 
    

 
64



  

SUTTON CAPITAL GROUP 
1101 SOUTH BLVD # 106 
CHARLOTTE, NC 28203 

     

 JASON TREMAIN BARNETT 
JEANNETTE M BARNETT 
933 VAN GERT DRI 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

JAMES J FERENCZY 
CATHY J FERNCZY 
4568 REEDY BRANCH ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

CHURCH OF THE OPEN DOOR 
4584 REEDY BRANCH RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

 JUDY DAIL BOWEN 
535 DAVENPORT FARM RD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

DORIS SALMON NOBLES 
455 DAVENPORT FARM RD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

RALPH CLAYTON DAVENPORT, 
JR 
DARREN ELWOOD DAVENPORT 
547 DAVENPORT FARM RD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590      

PITT COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
PO DRAWER 7007 
GREENVILLE NC 27835 

     

THURMAN DAVIS 
EDNA DAVIS 
450 DAVENPORT FARM ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

PITT COUNTY 

1717 W FIFTH ST 

GREENVILLE NC 27834 
     

STELLA LITTLE FARM A 
PARTNERSHIP 
217 KING GEORGE ROAD 
GREENVILLE NC 27858 

     

REEDY BRANCH FWB 
CHURCH 
4457 REEDY BRACNH RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

JAMES LITTLE FAMILY LTP 
203 DAVENPORT FARM RD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 
BLANIE ALLEN MORE, JR 
ARDETH L MOYE 
237 DAVENPORT FARM RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
 

     

KEVIN LITTLE 
203 DAVENPORT FARM RD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

TRIPP FARMS LLC  
105 MARION DR 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 

     

CAROLINA CONFERENCE OF 
7TH DAY ADVENTISTS INC 
4658 REEDY BRANCH RD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

TRADE LAND COMPANY, LLC 

3675 MARINE DRIVE 

GREENVILLE NC 27834 
  

  

BTD ASSOCIATES LLC 
3400 TARHEEL DIVE 
RALEIGH, NC 27609 

     

E MANLY CONGLETON 
ERIN B CONGLETON 
4661 REEDY BRANCH RD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

ZEN INVESTMENT 
PROPERTIES, INC 
4422 REEDY BRANCH ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

ERIC UHLENBROCK 
4432 REEDY BRANCH ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

   

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  
 65



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Sutton Capital Group, LLC 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Agricultural-Residential (AR) to R-10 CD, R-8 CD, R-6 CD 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION Intersection of Reedy Branch Rd. and Davenport Farm Rd. 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 12045; 23479; 38386 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on June 7th, 2021 and July 6, 2021. Notification was posted 
on site on June 8th, 2021. 22 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 94.372 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Partially Cleared / Agricultural; Partially Wooded 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural / Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N O&I PCC/Wooded 

E AR Single Family/Church 

W AR/RA-20 (Greenville Zoning) Single Family/Agricultural 

S AR Church 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
AR 

 
R-10; R-8; R-6 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Low-density residential and 
agricultural uses; where urban 
development is expected. 
 

(R-10 & 8) Medium Density; single-
family residential; limited home 
occupations. (R-6) relatively high-
density; single-family and two-family; 
limited home occupations.  

66



 

2 
Staff Report 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS Potential wetlands 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS (50’ Riparian Buffer along tributary off of Swift 
Creek) Stream feature located internally and 
along western property line. 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision plan required 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations. See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Reedy Branch/Davenport Farm– NCDOT Roads 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Davenport Farm Rd- 8500 
Reedy Branch Rd- 6700 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) Recommended. 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 
 

 

 

 

67



 

3 
Staff Report 

MPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed R-10, R-8, and R-6 zoning districts would allow land uses that are compatible 
with the general character of the area. 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as an Urban Neighborhood 

character area. The requested R-10; R-8; R-6 Districts are generally consistent with 

this character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Urban Neighborhood - General Character: 

• Somewhat higher density, predominantly single family detached residential housing. 

This land use type was identified as one that is appropriate and valued. This flexible 

land use type is appropriate for many parts of the planning area. 

 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 

Traffic Impact / Analysis 

The existing traffic patterns on Davenport Farm Road and Reedy Branch Road 

tend to be congested, especially during peak hours. This is due to the roads being 

two lane and having a four-way stop at the intersection. Staff recommends 

providing information on the necessary future upgrades to the rights-of-way and 

intersection. 

Staff Analysis 
 
The 94.372-acre property is currently being used for agriculture. The property North of the 
request is zoned O&I and is partially wooded but also used for a college campus (PCC). West 
of the request is zoned AR/RA-20(Greenville Zoning), partially being vacant and partially 
containing single-family homes. South of the request is zoned AR and is being used as a 
church campus (Open Door Church). East of the request is zoned AR and is single-family 

68



 

4 
Staff Report 

residential.  
 
The R-10; R-8; and R-6 District rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the Zoning Ordinance, the Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area. With consideration to the existing 
environmentally sensitive areas that exist on site (i.e. floodplain, buffered stream features) 
and the combination of the proposed R-10 CD, R-8 CD, and R-6 CD zoning districts, the 
proposed development is within the density recommendations provided within the Urban 
Neighborhood character area.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 94.372 acres from AR 

to R-10 CD, R-8 CD, R-6 CD with the following conditions: 

(1) All lots will be single family residential. 

(2) 8’ Side Setbacks. 

(3) All homes will be a minimum of 1500 SF (Heated). 

(4) The development will consist of fiber cement board exterior siding on all homes 

with some elevations consisting of brick or stone accents. 

(5) All homes will include a 2-car garage. 

(6) Dedication of 30’ Greenway easement along Swift Creek. 

(6) Development will include amenity area with pool and cabana. 

 

69



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386). 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 13, 2021. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification of Rezoning, Address 
Labels to Adjacent Property Owners, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Sutton Capital Group. 

Location: Intersection of Reedy Branch Road and Davenport Farm Road. 

Parcel Numbers: 12045, 23479, and 38386. 

Site Data: 94.372 acres. 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

Proposed Zoning District: R-10 CD, R-8 CD, and R-6 CD. 

❖ Proposed Zoning Districts:  R-10 (33.773 Acres), R-8 (30.579 Acres), R-6 (22.613 Acres). 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on June 7, 2021 and July 

6, 2021. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on June 8, 2021. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the rezoning request (7-1) on July 19, 2021. 

Conditions: 

(1) All lots will be single family residential. 

(2) 8-foot Side Setbacks. 

(3) All homes will be a minimum of 1,500 SF (Heated). 

(4) The development will consist of fiber cement board exterior siding on all homes with some 

elevations consisting of brick or stone accents. 

(5) All homes will include a 2-car garage. 

(6) Dedication of 30-foot Greenway easement along Swift Creek. 

(7) Development will include amenity area with pool and cabana. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 13, 2021. 

 

70



71



72



1
.3

0
8
9
 A

C
R

E
S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 G

B

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 O

&
I

1
1
2
8
-

D
A

V
E

N
P

O
R
T
 
F

A
R

M

1149-NORTH MILL

1148-PITT TECH

1
1
3
0
-

V
E
R

N
O

N
 

W
H
I
T
E RAI

LROAD

NC 11

NC 
11

T
IL

C
O

W OLF

FLOW ER

B
E

A
C

O
N
 

D
R
I

V
E

1
7
0
8
-
F
I
R
E
 
T

O
W
E
R

1
"
=

 1
0

0
'

0
6
/2

9
/2

1

S
IT

E

A
Q

U
A

T
IC

 H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
, L

L
C

P
A

G
E

 7
4

1
 P

F
 T

H
E

 P
IT

T
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
Y

A
 P

O
R

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 R
E

C
O

R
D

E
D

 I
N

 D
E

E
D

 B
O

O
K

 3
3
6
8
,

C
E

P

W
K

M

1

M
A

L
P

A
S

S
  
&

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S

W
IN

T
E

R
V

IL
L

E
  
 W

IN
T

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 T
O

W
N

S
H

IP
  
 P

IT
T

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

  
 N

O
R

T
H

 C
A

R
O

L
IN

A

S
U

R
V

E
Y

E
D

:

D
R

A
W

N
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

D
A

T
E

:

S
C

A
L

E
:

1

N
/A

(2
5

2
) 

7
5

6
-1

7
8

0
G

R
E

E
N

V
IL

L
E

, 
  
N

.C
. 
  
2
7
8
5
8

1
6
4
5
 E

. 
A

R
L

IN
G

T
O

N
 B

L
V

D
.,
 S

U
IT

E
 D

N
C

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
C

-1
2
8
9

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

W
C

O

(2
5

2
) 

7
4

6
-6

7
8

5

A
Y

D
E

N
 N

C
 2

8
5

1
3

5
5
6
 T

H
IR

D
 S

T

A
Q

U
A

T
IC

 H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
 L

L
C

R
E

Z
O

N
IN

G
 M

A
P

 F
O

R

P
H

O
N

E
:

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
:

 O
W

N
E

R
:

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

1
"
=

 1
0
0
0
'

0

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 S
C

A
L

E

1
0
0

5
0

1
0
0

2
0
0

1
"
=

 1
0

0
'

MB 46, P 150

D
.B

. 
4
8
0
, 
P

G
. 
5
5
8

A
N

N
 N

. 
M

O
O

R
E

L
IN

D
A

 E
. 
K

E
E

L
 &

D
B

 1
1

2
7

, 
P

G
 7

5
8

D
B

 3
7
5
0
, 
P

G
 7

7
0

D
B

 2
9
7
3
, 
P

G
 5

7
2

G
A

Y
L

E
 O

V
E

R
M

A
N

 C
O

B
B

J
A

M
E

S
 A

. 
M

O
R

A
L

E
S

N
E

V
E

E
N

 B
. 
M

O
R

A
L

E
S

 &

F
A

M
IL

Y
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP

L
U

D
IE

 A
N

G
E

 M
O

O
R

E

M
.B

. 
6
6
, 
P

G
. 

1
4
5

M
.B

. 
8
4
, 
P

G
. 
1
1
0

M
.B

. 
8
4
, 

P
G

. 
1
4
1

A
N

G
E

 P
L

A
Z

A

A
N

G
E

 P
L

A
Z

A

&
 J

. 
T

IL
M

O
N

 K
E

E
L

C
O

L
L

IC
E

 &
 A

N
N

 N
. 

M
O

O
R

E
, 

L
L

C

M
.B

. 
6
6
, 

P
G

. 
1
2
3

A
N

G
E

 P
L

A
Z

A

H
E

A
T

H
E

R
 H

. 
J
O

N
E

S

G
R

A
N

T
 R

. 
&

G
A

L
V

IN

M
A

X
 &

 M
O

N
IC

A

D
B

 2
0
0
3
, 
P

G
 8

2
9

R
E

B
E

C
C

A
 B

. 
W

H
IT

E

C
H

A
R

L
E

S
 V

. 
&

R
E

B
E

C
C

A
 B

. 
W

H
IT

E

C
H

A
R

L
E

S
 V

. 
&

M
.B

. 
6
4
, 
P

G
. 
2
6

A
N

G
E

 P
L

A
Z

A

1
3

2
3

2
2

2
1

1
7

B
E
A
C

O
N
 D

R
IV

E

(6
0
'P

U
B
L
IC
 R
/W
 -
 4
0
'B
/B
)

A
N

G
E

 P
L

A
Z

A

M
.B

. 
5

0
, 

P
. 

1
2

9

D
B

 1
9
8
8
, 
P

G
 5

1
4

M
.B

. 
5

0
, 

P
. 

1
2

9

D
B

 1
9
8
8
, 
P

G
 5

1
4

M
.B

. 
6

5
, 

P
. 

9
7

D
B

 2
0
3
, 
P

G
 7

0
6

D
.B

. 
3

0
7

7
, 

P
. 

2
2

2

M
.B

. 
8
5
, 

P
G

. 
1
4
1

A
N

G
E

 P
L

A
Z

A

2
0

M
.B

. 
8
2
, 

P
G

. 
1
2
8

A
N

N
 N

. 
M

O
O

R
E

L
IN

D
A

 E
. 
K

E
E

L
 &

A
N

N
 N

. 
M

O
O

R
E

L
IN

D
A

 E
. 
K

E
E

L
 &

M
.B

. 
8
2
, 
P

G
. 
1
2
8

G
B

O
&

I

O
&

I

O
&

I

O
&

I

A
R

A
R

A
R

A
R

A
R

A
R

A
R

A
R

A
R

G
B

G
B

G
B

G
B

G
B

G
B

G
B

G
B

G
B

M
.B

. 
7
9
, 
P

G
. 
7
8

A
N

G
E

 P
L

A
Z

A

1
4

G
B

 

1
7
3
.0
7
' 
(T
IE
)

75
.8
2'

S 
31

°0
4'4

3"
W

S 08°20'53"W - 134.43'

N
 8
1
°3
9
'0
7
"W
 -
 1
6
3
.9
0
'

104.15'

N 07°34'02"E

N
 8
1
°4
2
'5
4
"W
 -
 1
8
9
.9
3
'

96.2
2'

N 1
5°2

5'05
"E

3
2
.0
0
'

S
 7
4
°3
4
'5
5
"E

S
 8
1
°4
2
'5
4
"E
 -
 3
7
8
.4
3
'

3
9
.2
9
'

   1.31 Acres +/-57016.68 Sq.' +/-LOT15REZONING

11
8.
50
'

N 
31

°0
4'4

3"
E

3
.9

3
'

N
 3

1
°
0
4
'4

3
"
E

73



Legal Description For 
Aquatic Holdings, LLC 

 
Lying and being situate in Winterville, Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina 
and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at a point in the eastern line of Lot 14 Ange Plaza as recorded in map book 
79, page 78 of the Pitt County Registry said point being located S 31-04-43 W – 118.50’ 
from the northeast corner of said Lot 14 Ange Plaza, thence from said point of 
beginning with the eastern line of Lot 14 Ange Plaza S 31-04-43 W – 75.82’, thence S 
08-20-53 W – 134.43’ to the northern line of the Gayle Overman Cobb property as 
recorded in deed book 203, page 706, thence with the northern line of the Gayle 
Overman Cobb property N 81-39-07 W – 163.90’ to the eastern line of the Grant R. 
Jones property as recorded in deed book 2973, page 572, thence with the eastern line 
of the Grant R. Jones property  
N 07-34-02 E – 104.15’, thence with the northern line of the Grant R. Jones property  
N 81-42-54 W – 189.93’ to the northeast corner of the Max Galvin property as recorded 
in deed book 2003, page 829, thence with the northern line of the Max Galvin property  
N 74-34-55 W – 39.29’, thence leaving the northern line of the Max Galvin property  
N 15-25-05 E – 96.22’, thence N 31-04-43 E – 3.93’, thence S 74-34-55 E – 32.00’, 
thence S 81-42-54 E – 378.43’ to the point of beginning containing 1.3089 acres. 

74



2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 
PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 
Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 

 
Planning and Zoning 

Rezoning Request 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Planning and Zoning Board will meet on 
Monday, July 19, 2021 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order 
to consider the following request: 
 
Aquatic Holdings, LLC has submitted a rezoning application to rezone a portion of Parcel 82774 
(1.3090 Acres) as shown on the attached map from Office and Institutional to General Business.  The 
purpose of the General Business District (GB) is to accommodate those business that serve the 
traveling public, require large amounts of land for display and parking, and are not oriented to the 
pedestrian shopper. 
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Tall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
**The Town of Winterville will be keeping measures in place in an ongoing effort to mitigate the 
spread of COVID-19.  These measures include limiting physical attendance at the meeting, 
employing social distancing, and implementing remote participation.  The meeting is open to the 
public; however, limited attendance will be allowed to attend in-person due to COVID-19 provisions 
and the meeting will be available electronically.  The public is encouraged to watch the meeting live 
on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos).  Those that wish to address the Planning and Zoning 
Board during the meeting should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 215-2344 to register by one 
business day before the meeting at 5:00 p.m.  The public may submit written comments to the 
Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590, or via email 
to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

75

http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


  

AQUATIC HOLDINGS, LLC 
556 THIRD STREET 
AYDEN, NC 28513 

     

JAMES HUDSON 
2875 LANING CIRCLE 
GRIMESLAND, NC 27837 

     

CHARLES VERNON WHITE 
REBECCA BRIGHT WHITE 
139 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

  

  

LUDIE ANGE MOORE FAMILY 
PARTNERSHIP 
PO BOX 1207 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

     

NEVEEN B MORALES 
JAMES A MORALES 
181 VERNON WHITE ROAD  
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

MAX GALVAN 
MONIKA GALVAN 
193 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

GRANT ROWLSON JONES 
HEATHER H JONES 
209 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

GAYLE OVERMAN COBB 
225 VERNON WHITE ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

REGIONAL ACCEPTANCE CORP 
PO BOX 167 
WINSTON SALEM, NC 27102 

  

  

COLLICE & ANN MOORE LLC 

NALUKAI LLC 

4300 SAPPHIRE CT, STE 116 

GREENVILLE, NC 27834      

CEDAR LANDING 
PROPERTIES, LLC 
3 REST HAVEN ROAD EXT 
BATH, NC 27808 

     

PITT COUNTY FARM BUREAU 
INC  
3200 CHARLES BV 
GREENVILLE NC 27858 

  

  

POOL PRO OF GREENVILLE 
LLC 
1703 HIGHWAY 123 S 
HOOKERTON, NC 28538 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

 

  

  

 

     

 

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  
 76



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Aquatic Holdings LLC  

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST OI to GB 

CONDITIONS N/A  

LOCATION 214 Beacon Drive 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 82774 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on July 6, 2021. Notification was posted on site on July 6, 
2021. 13 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 1.3090 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Vacant/Partially Wooded 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N GB Commercial 

E O&I  Commercial 

W O&I Commercial 

S AR Residential 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
O&I 

 
GB 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

For residences, 
business/professional offices, and 
institutional areas 

 

Accommodate businesses that 
serve the traveling public, with 
large amount of land for display 
and parking  

 

77



 

2 
Staff Report 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A  

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS N/A 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations. See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Beacon Drive – Town of Winterville Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

N/A 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS N/A 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

78



 

3 
Staff Report 

 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed GB (General Business) zoning district would allow land uses that are 
compatible with the general character of the area. 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Neighborhood Center character 

area. The requested GB - General Business zoning district is generally consistent with 

this character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Neighborhood Center - General Character: 

• Context-appropriate commercial, retail, services, professional offices, and occasionally 

residential located at key locations and crossroads that serve the general neighborhood 

around them. Small-lot residential or patio homes and/or attached residential could be 

part of the land use mix. 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 1.3090 acre property is vacant with a partially wooded area at the southernmost part of 
the parcel. The property North of the request is zoned GB (Pool Pro/ Pitt County Farm 
Bureau). West of the request is zoned GB (Aquaventure). South of the request is zoned AR 
(single family residential). East of the request is zoned O&I (Regional Acceptance/NC 
Department of Revenue). 
 
The GB – General Business rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the Zoning Ordinance, the Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area. 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 1.3090 acres from O&I 

to GB – General Business. 

 

79



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Alfred Martin McLawhorn, William Farkas – Rezoning Request (Parcels 39149 and 16203). 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 13, 2021. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification of Rezoning, Address 
Labels to Adjacent Property Owners, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Carl Parker. 

 

Location: Mill Street north of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road. 

 

Parcel Numbers: 39149 and 16203. 

 

Site Data: 11.6153 acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: R-8. 

 

Proposed Zoning District: MR. 

❖ Proposed Zoning District:  Multi-Family Residential (MFR). 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on July 2, 2021. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on June 29, 2021. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval on July 19, 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 13, 2021. 

 

80



81



82



83



84



85



Legal Description For 
Alfred Martin McLawhorn 

 
Lying and being situate in Winterville, Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina 
and being more particularly described as follows: 
 

Tract 1 
To be rezoned from R-8 to MR 

 
Beginning at a point in the western right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill Street said point 
being the northeast corner of the Wilkerson Associates property as recorded in deed 
book 2755, page 624 of the Pitt County Registry, thence from said point of beginning 
with the northern line of the Wilkerson Associates property and the northern line of the 
Wintergreen Commons, LLC property as recorded in deed book 3718, page 17  
N 67-42-51 W – 1063.62’ to the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11, thence with the 
eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 91.23’ along the arc of a curve said curve being 
to the left having a radius of 2964.79’ and a chord bearing N 12-30-56 E – 91.22’, 
thence N 11-10-34 E – 50.00’, thence N 10-21-40 E – 50.00’, thence N 09-42-18 E – 
50.00’, thence N 09-11-42 E – 50.00’, thence N 08-52-04 E – 43.67’ to the southern line 
of the R.E. Davenport, Jr. Family Limited Partnership property as recorded in deed book 
775, page 168, thence with the southern line of the R.E. Davenport, Jr. Family Limited 
Partnership property S 85-45-29 E – 632.91’, thence leaving the southern line of the 
R.E. Davenport, Jr. Family Limited Partnership property S 56-33-49 W – 158.67’, 
thence  
S 11-06-09 W – 291.77’, thence S 67-42-51 E – 562.13’ to the western right of way of 
NCSR 1149 – Mill Street, thence with the western right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill 
Street S 22-08-12 W – 106.56’ to the point of beginning containing 6.3702 acres. 
 

Tract 2 
To be rezoned from R-8 to MR 

 
Beginning at a point in the western right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill Street said point 
being the northeast corner of the Luther E. Carraway, Jr. & Teresa A. Brozowski 
property as recorded in deed book 3371, page 58 of the Pitt County Registry, thence 
from said point of beginning with the northern line of Luther E. Carraway, Jr. & Teresa 
A. Brozowski property N 67-42-35 W – 277.35’, thence with the western line of Luther 
E. Carraway, Jr. & Teresa A. Brozowski property S 22-17-09 W – 220.00’, thence  
N 67-42-51 W – 284.46’, thence N 11-06-09 E – 291.77’, thence N 56-33-49 E – 
158.67’ to the southern line of the R.E. Davenport, Jr. Family Limited Partnership 
property as recorded in deed book 775, page 168, thence with the southern line of the 
R.E. Davenport, Jr. Family Limited Partnership property S 87-47-38 E – 297.12’ to the 
southwest corner of the ASA Winterville, LLC property as recorded in deed book 2712, 
page 426 (Lot 1 Winterville Square Apartments as record in map book 32, page 28), 
thence with the southern line of the ASA Winterville, LLC property S 85-59-37 E – 
226.17’ to the western right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill Street, thence with the western 
right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill Street S 13-27-50 W – 185.39’, thence S 20-12-35 W 
– 187.24’ to the point of beginning containing 5.2451 acres. 

86



87



88



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Carl Parker  

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST R-8 to MR 

CONDITIONS N/A  

LOCATION 2752 Mill Street 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 39149 / 16203 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on July 2, 2021. Notification was posted on site on June 29, 
2021. 8 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 11.6153 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Partially Vacant/ Small detached structures on eastern side of 
property 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N MR Farmland 

E R-8  Residential 

W AR Farmland 

S I  Farmland 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
R-8 

 
MR  

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Medium-density neighborhood 
with single-family homes 

 

Relatively high-density 
neighborhood  

 

89



 

2 
Staff Report 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Special Use Permit and Site Plan are required to 
develop on this parcel. 

**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations. See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Mill Street – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Mill Street – 7,400 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS N/A 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

90



 

3 
Staff Report 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed MR (Multi-Family Residential) zoning district would allow land uses that are 
compatible with the general character of the area. 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as an Urban Neighborhood 

character area. The requested MR – Multifamily Residential zoning district is generally 

consistent with this character area as defined by the future land use designation 

(“context-sensitive patio homes and attached residential permitted if design criteria are 

met”). 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Urban Neighborhood - General Character: 

• Primarily medium-sized lots with single family detached residential and occasionally 

smaller-scale, context-sensitive patio homes and attached residential permitted if 

design criteria are met. Generally, 3-8 dwellings per acre. Some small-scale services, 

restaurants, or offices encouraged at select locations with good access. 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 11.6153 acre property is partial vacant with two small structures on the eastern side of 
property. The property North of the request is zoned MR (vacant farmland). West of the 
request is zoned AR (vacant farmland). South of the request is zoned Industrial (vacant 
farmland). East of the request is zoned R-8 and is a single-family dwelling (Luther Carraway). 
 
The MR – Multifamily Residential rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose 
of the Zoning Ordinance, the Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the 
existing development and trends in the surrounding area. 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 11.6153 acres from R-

8 to MR – Multifamily Residential. 

 

91



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Pitt County Farms, LLC – Rezoning Request (Parcel 60147). 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 13, 2021. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification of Rezoning, Address 
Labels to Adjacent Property Owners, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Pitt County Farms, LLC. 

Location: Northeast corner of intersection of NC Hwy 11 S and Reedy Branch Road. 

Parcel Numbers: 60147. 

Site Data: 9.8706 acres. 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

Proposed Zoning District: I. 

❖ Proposed Zoning District: Industrial (I). 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on July 2, 2021. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on June 29, 2021. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval on July 19, 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 13, 2021. 

 

92



93



94



(P
UBLIC

 R
/W
 V

ARI
ES 

- P
AVEMENT 

VARI
ES)

NC 
HW

Y 
11
 

(60' PUBLIC R/W  - 24' PAVEMENT)REEDY BRANCH ROAD

PAVEMENT V
ARIE

S)

(PUBLIC
 R/

W 
VARIE

S -

REEDY B
RANCH R

OAD

NCSR 1
13

1 -

(6
0
' 
P
U
B
L
IC
 R
/W
)

C
Y
N
T
H
IA
 R

O
A
D

1
2

A

1
1
A

1
1
B

1
0

A
1
0
B

4
A

4
B

3
A

3
B

2
A

2
B

1
A

1
B

1
2
B

5
A

5
B

6
A

6
B

7
A

7
B

8
A

8
B

9
A

9
B

D
B

 2
7
8
6
, 
P

G
 3

3
6

D
M

S
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

 O
F

 N
C

, 
L

L
C

G
B

M
B

 4
9
. 
P

G
 7

4

S
O

U
T

H
 R

ID
G

E
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N

R
8

D
B

 1
2

0
0

, 
P

G
 8

2
4

O
F

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

, 
C

/O
 F

H
A

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

T
A

T
E

S

A
R

D
B

 1
7

9
, 

P
G

 2
4

6

E
L

IZ
A

B
E

T
H

 K
. 

D
U

N
N

D
E

R
E

K
 P

. 
&

I

D
B

 1
0
5
4
, 
P

G
 8

1
7

J
A

C
K

 J
O

N
E

S
, 
L

L
C

A
R

D
B

 1
4
1
9
, 
P

G
 7

5
8

F
R

A
N

C
IN

E
 E

. 
C

O
O

K
E

T
H

O
M

A
S

 H
.,
 J

R
. 
&

G
B

D
B

 2
8
, 
P

G
 1

7
1

J
A

N
IC

E
 J

. 
B

R
A

N
C

H

C
O

N
N

IE
 H

. 
&

A
R

D
B

 D
-2

4
, 
P

G
 4

2
9

T
H

A
D

D
E

U
S

 C
. 
G

A
Y

L
O

R
D

A
R

D
B

 3
9
1
4
, 
P

G
 4

7
6

C
R

A
IG

 M
. 
G

O
E

S
S

C
R

A
IG

 F
. 
G

O
E

S
S

G
B

1
3
B

1
3

A

9
.6

8
1

5
 A

C

I

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G

A
R

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

IN
G

N 
27

°4
7'0

7"
E 
- 1

86
.63
'

1
4
1
.9

2
'

S
 2

1
°
0
0
'1

1
"
W

2
9
.3

4
'

N
 6

3
°
0
2
'2

0
"
W

S 00°41'40"E - 719.34'

9
1
.7
8
'

N
 6
4
°2
8
'3
6
"W

N 
27

°4
9'0

3"
E 
- 8

40
.81
'

N
 8
9
°
1
7
'0
5
"E
 -
 3
1
2
.0
4
'

S
 7
9
°3
2
'1
5
"W
 -
 4
0
3
.4
1
'

N
 7
2
°1
6
'4
7
"W
 -
 2
5
6
.3
1
'

6
4
.3

4
'

S
 0

0
°
2

7
'5

2
"
E

5
4
.1

4
'

S
 0

0
°
0

4
'2

5
"
E

S 2
1°0

0'1
1"W

 - 4
69
.38
'

1
1
3
3

1
7
1
1

1
7
1
2

1
7
1
4

1
1
3
1

1
1
4
9

1
1
3
1

1
7
1
8

1
7
1
4

CSX

S
t
.

B
r
a
n
c
h

M
a
in

Ange

St.

L
a
u
ra

E
ll
is

Churc
h

St.

Ext.

Hill

Reedy

Branch
Rd.

Rd.

Old

NC

Hwy

11

Churc
h

St
.

Ext.

E
.

C
o
o
p
e
r

St.

S.

N.

E
.

W
.

M
a
in

S
t.

Dr.

Graham

AngeSt.

Fast St.

ForbesAve.

L
e
e

S
t.

Marshall

Ave.

Ange St.

N
o
r
th

S
t.

AcademySt.

E
.

B
lo
u
n
t

S
t.

S
y
lv
a
n
ia

S
t.

L
ib
e
r
ty

S
t.

Gaylo
rd

St.

D
iv
is
io
n

S
t.

W
.B
lo
u
n
tS
t.

W
.

C
o

o
p

e
r

S
t
.

CrossSt.

W
. 

D
e
p
o
t 
S
t.D
e
p
o
t

E
.

S
t.

Jones

S
IT

E

R
E

Z
O

N
I
N

G
 M

A
P

 F
O

R

N
C

 L
I
C

E
N

S
E

 N
O

. 
C

-
1
2
8
9

M
A

L
P

A
S

S

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 A
N

D
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

A
N

D

G
R

E
E

N
V

IL
L

E
, N

C

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

D
A

T
E

:

S
C

A
L

E
: 

S
H

E
E

T
  

 O
F

 

M
A

L
P

A
S

S
 &

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S

D
R

A
W

N
:

C
E

P

N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

I
N

A

1
1

P
H

O
N

E
:

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S
:

 O
W

N
E

R
:

G
R

E
E

N
V

I
L

L
E

, 
N

.C
. 
2
7
8
5
8

(
2
5
2
)
 7

5
6
-
1
7
8
0

1
6
4
5
 E

A
S

T
 A

R
L

I
N

G
T

O
N

 B
L

V
D

.,
 S

U
I
T

E
 D

6/24/2021 10:59:55 AM

L:\dgn\p1200-p1299\P-1291, Parcel No. 60147 NC Hwy. 11, Derek Dunn\P1291REZ.dgn

1
"
 
=

 
1

0
0

'

W
I
N

T
E

R
V

I
L

L
E

 T
O

W
N

S
H

I
P

  
  

P
I
T

T
 C

O
U

N
T

Y

W
C

O

O
F

 T
H

E
 P

I
T

T
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 R

E
G

I
S

T
R

Y

 D
E

E
D

 B
O

O
K

 3
3
8
8
, 
P

A
G

E
 3

2
8
,

A
 P

O
R

T
I
O

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 D
E

S
C

R
I
B

E
D

 I
N

0
6

/
0

3
/
2

1

S
U

R
V

E
Y

E
D

:
N

/A

P
I
T

T
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 F

A
R

M
S

, 
L

L
C

(
2
5
2
)
7
5
7
-
1
6
2
7
 

G
R

E
E

N
V

I
L

L
E

, 
N

C
 2

7
8
3
3

P
O

 B
O

X
 3

0
1
8
9

P
I
T

T
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 F

A
R

M
S

, 
L

L
C

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 S
C

A
L

E

1
0
0
'

1
0
0
'

0
5

0
'

2
0
0
'

1
"
 =

 1
0

0
'

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 N
O

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 ,
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
 N

O
.

P
-1

2
9

1
P

1
2

9
1

R
E

Z
.D

G
N

NAD 83 (2011)

NC GRID

V
I
C

I
N

I
T

Y
 M

A
P

1
"
=

 2
0
0
0
'

95



Legal Description For 
Pitt County Farms, LLC 

 
Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and 
being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at a point in the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 said point being 
located N 21-00-11 E – 469.38’ from the intersection of the eastern right of way 
of NC Hwy 11 and the northern right of way of Cynthia Road, thence from said 
point of beginning with the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 N 64-28-36 W – 
91.78’, thence N 27-49-03 E – 840.81’, thence N 63-02-20 W – 29.34’, thence N 
27-47-07 E – 186.63’ to the southern line of the Derek P. Dunn and Elizabeth K. 
Dunn property as recorded in deed book 179, page 246 of the Pitt County 
Registry, thence with the southern line of the Derek P. Dunn and Elizabeth K. 
Dunn property S 00-27-52 E – 64.34’, thence S 00-04-25 E – 54.14’, thence N 
89-17-05 E – 312.04’, thence leaving the southern line of the Derek P. Dunn and 
Elizabeth K. Dunn property S 00-41-40 E – 719.34’ to the northern line of South 
Ridge Subdivision as recorded in map book 49, page 74, thence with the 
northern line of South Ridge Subdivision S 79-32-15 W – 403.41’ to the northeast 
corner of the DMS Properties Of NC, LLC property as recorded in deed book 
2786, page 336, thence with the northern line of the DMS Properties Of NC, LLC 
property N 72-16-47 W – 256.31’, thence with the western line of the DMS 
Properties Of NC, LLC property S 21-00-11 W – 141.92’ to the point of beginning 
containing 9.6815 acres. 

96



97



98



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Pitt County Farms, LLC  

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST AR to I 

CONDITIONS N/A  

LOCATION Northeast corner of intersection of NC Hwy 11 and Reedy Branch 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 60147 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on July 2, 2021. Notification was posted on site on June 29, 
2021. 24 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 9.8706 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Farm Land 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N I Industrial 

E AR Governmental 

W GB/AR Commercial/Residential 

S GB/R8 Commercial/Residential 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
AR (Agricultural-Residential) 

 
I (Industrial) 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Promotes compatible mixture of 
low-density residential and 
agricultural uses where urban 
development is expected to occur. 
 

Suited for industrial, warehousing, 
and storage uses w/o excessive 
amounts of noise, smoke, dust, 
odor, or other objectionable 
characteristics. 

 

99



 

2 
Staff Report 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site plan required for developing on this lot. 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations. See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION NC Highway 11 – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

NC Highway 11 – 20,000 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS N/A 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

100



 

3 
Staff Report 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed I (Industrial) zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible with the 
general character of the area. 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as an Office and Employment 

character area. The requested I (Industrial) zoning district is generally consistent with 

this character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Office and Employment - General Character: 

• Large office buildings, manufacturing, distributions, and light-to-medium industrial uses, 

storage and flex uses, along with associated offices and supporting commercial uses. 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 9.8706 acre property is currently being used for farm land. The property North of the 
request is zoned I (Industrial) with a concrete manufacturing plant. West of the request is 
zoned GB and AR with vacant farmland, storage shed sales, and a residential house. South 
of the request is zoned GB/R8 with a fabric store (Prints and Plaids) and a duplex subdivision 
(South Ridge). East of the request is zoned AR and holds a US Governmental building. 
 
The I (Industrial) rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area. 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 9.6815 acres from AR 

to I (Industrial). 

101



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Winterville Interconnect Site – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, and Resolution 21-R-081. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town of Winterville (property owner of Parcel 82612 – Interconnect Site) is applying for annexation into 

the Town limits. 

 

Winterville Interconnect Site: 

Location: Worthington Road east of its intersection with Old Tar Road. 

Size: 0.8 Acres 

 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

❖ 1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (8/9/2021). 

❖ 2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (9/13/2021). 

❖ 3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (10/11/2021). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD 

Recommendation: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency. 

 

102



103



N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

T
O

W
N

 
O

F
 
W

I
N

T
E
R
V
I
L
L
E

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
3
4
3
-
7
9

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
7
9
-
2
9

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
8
2
6
1
2

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
0
.
8
0
2

9
7
8
 
W

O
R
T
H

I
N

G
T
O

N
 
R
D

.

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

B
I
L
L
 
C
L
A
R
K
 
H

O
M

E
S
 
O

F
 
G

R
E
E
N

V
I
L
L
E
,
 
L
L
C

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
7
7
8
-
8
4
5

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
8
6
-
1
5
5

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
2
5
7
7
7

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
7
.
4
7

0
 
W

O
R
T
H

I
N

G
T
O

N
 
R
D

.

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

F
E
N

N
E
R
 
L
.
 
A
L
L
E
N

 
I
I
I
 
E
T
A
L
S

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
H

4
1
-
6
6
5

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
0
0
2
6
1

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
1
0
9
.
2
6

1
1
2
4
 
W

O
R
T
H

I
N

G
T
O

N
 
R
D

.

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

J
U

L
I
A
 
W

O
R
T
H

I
N

G
T
O

N
 
K
E
V
I
L
L
E
 
A
N

D

H
U

S
B
A
N

D
 
G

E
O

R
G

E
 
W

.
 
K
E
V
I
L
L
E

A
S
 
T
E
N

A
N

T
S
 
B
Y
 
T
H

E
 
E
N

T
I
R
E
T
Y

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
3
5
2
-
1
1
7

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
2
5
7
9
3

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
2
.
6
5

1
0
3
0
 
W

O
R
T
H

I
N

G
T
O

N
 
R
D

.

W

O

R

T

H

I

N

G

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

 

(

S

R

 

1

7

1

1

)

6

0

'

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

 

P

E

R

 

M

.

B

.

 

8

6

 

P

G

.

 

1

5

5

-

1

5

6

N

 

7

0

°

 

4

4

'

 

0

1

"

 

E

 

 

2

,

0

8

7

.

0

9

'

 

(

G

R

I

D

)

C

O

M

B

I

N

E

D

 

S

C

A

L

E

 

F

A

C

T

O

R

 

1

.

0

0

0

7

8

8

9

6

L

I

N

E

 

N

O

T

 

T

O

 

S

C

A

L

E

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

 

C

I

T

Y

 

L

I

M

I

T

 

L

I

N

E

P

E

R

 

M

.

B

.

 

8

6

 

P

G

.

 

1

6

1

O

R

D

I

N

A

N

C

E

 

N

O

.

 

2

1

-

0

-

0

3

1

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

 

C

I

T

Y

 

L

I

M

I

T

 

L

I

N

E

P

E

R

 

M

.

B

.

 

8

6

 

P

G

.

 

1

6

1

O

R

D

I

N

A

N

C

E

 

N

O

.

 

2

1

-

0

-

0

3

1

F
E
M

A
 
A
E
F
W

 
Z
O

N
E

F
E
M

A
 
A
E
 
Z
O

N
E

N
O

N
-
B
U

I
L
D

A
B
L
E
 
F
O

R
 
S
E
P
T
I
C
 
U

S
E

75
'

S

O

U

T

H

E

A

S

T

 

D

R

A

I

N

A

G

E

D

I

S

T

R

I

C

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

M

.

B

.

 

7

9

 

P

G

.

 

2

9

M.B. 79 PG. 29

A
C

C
E

S
S

 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

R
E

T
A

I
N

E
D

 
B

Y
 
O

W
N

E
R

30'

E

L

E

C

T

R

I

C

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

 

T

O

G

R

E

E

N

V

I

L

L

E

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

I

E

S

 

C

O

M

M

I

S

S

I

O

N

P

E

R

 

M

.

B

.

 

7

9

 

P

G

.

 

2

9

N
 
5

7
°
4

3
'
4

7
"
 
W

 
 
 
3

8
.
7

6
'

T
I
E

 
L

I
N

E
 
T

O
 
M

A
G

 
N

A
I
L

 
S

E
T

C
E

N
T

E
R

L
I
N

E
 
I
N

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

O
F

 
R

O
A

D
 
A

N
D

 
C

A
N

A
L

N 
71

°3
0'

14
" E

   
33

1.
37

'

S 18°22'04" E   125.00'

S 
71

°3
9'

13
" W

   
22

9.
35

'

N 57
°4

6'3
0"

 W
   1

60
.7

1'

N
E
W

 
C
I
T
Y

L
I
M

I
T
 
L
I
N

E

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 
C

O
R

N
E

R

5
/
8

"
 
R

E
B

A
R

N
:
 
6

5
0

,
7

5
4

.
3

4

E
:
 
2

,
4

8
5

,
5

5
4

.
7

0

M
A

G
 
N

A
I
L

 
S

E
T

 
A

T
 
I
N

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
O

F

W
O

R
T

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
&

 
C

O
R

E
Y

 
R

O
A

D
S

N
:
 
6

5
1

,
4

4
2

.
9

9

E
:
 
2

,
4

8
7

,
5

2
4

.
9

0

AN
N

EX
AT

IO
N

 M
AP

 F
O

R 
"N

EW
 L

O
T"

 -
 M

.B
. 7

9 
PG

.2
9

0.
80

2 
AC

RE
S

1 
O

F 
1

AC
RO

SS
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
O

F:
TO

W
N

 O
F 

W
IN

TE
RV

IL
LE

D
ee

d 
Bo

ok
: 3

34
3 

 P
ag

e:
 7

9
M

ap
 B

oo
k:

 7
9 

Pa
ge

: 2
9

FI
EL

D
 S

UR
VE

Y 
BY

:

TW
C

P
I
T
T
 
C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
I
N

T
E
R
V
I
L
L
E
 
T
O

W
N

S
H

I
P

N
O

R
T
H

 
C
A
R
O

L
I
N

A

FI
EL

D
 S

UR
VE

Y 
D

AT
E:

N
/A

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y:

SE
H

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
o.

:

28
53

-A
P

D
O

CU
M

EN
T 

N
o.

:

28
53

AP
-C

00
2

SH
EE

T 
N

o.
:

SE
H

D
AT

E:

07
/2

3/
20

21

VI
CI

N
IT

Y 
M

AP
 (N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

)

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
50

'

25
'

50
'

0

3
0
0
 
S

.
 
M

a
i
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 

· 
W

i
n
s
t
o
n
-
S

a
l
e
m

,
 
N

C
 
2
7
1
0
1

(
8
0
3
)
 
7
2
2
-
5
3
2
6
 · 
t
h
e
w

o
o
t
e
n
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
.
c
o
m

L
i
c
e
n
s
e
 
N

u
m

b
e
r
 
:
 
F

-
0
1
1
5

C:\Users\shealy\Desktop\2853AP_Annex_Plat_Interconnect-Site_SEH.dwg   SHEALY   7/23/2021 2:41 PM

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

N
O

T 
FO

R 
RE

CO
RD

AT
IO

N
,

CO
N

VE
YA

N
CE

, O
R 

SA
LE

S

TH
IS

 M
AP

 W
AS

 P
RE

PA
RE

D 
FR

O
M

 R
EC

O
RD

ED
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 A

N
D 

N
O

T 
FR

O
M

 A
N

 A
CT

U
AL

 S
U

RV
EY

.
M

AP
 S

HO
W

IN
G 

AR
EA

 A
N

N
EX

ED
 B

Y
TO

W
N

 O
F 

W
IN

TE
RV

IL
LE

, N
.C

.
O

RD
IN

AN
CE

 N
O

:_
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

   
AR

EA
: 0

.8
02

 A
CR

ES
AC

CE
PT

ED
 F

O
R 

TH
E 

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

IN
TE

RV
IL

LE

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

M
AY

O
R

DA
TE

LE
GE

N
D

CO
M

PU
TE

D 
PO

IN
T 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

N
O

TE
D

DE
ED

 B
O

O
K

D.
B.

BO
O

K 
O

F 
M

AP
S

B.
M

.
PA

GE
PG

.
SQ

U
AR

E 
FE

ET
SF

RI
GH

T 
O

F 
W

AY
R/

W

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
LI

N
E 

(T
YP

E 
AS

 N
O

TE
D)

O
LD

 T
A
R
 R

D

SI
TE

W

O

R

T

H

I

N

G

T

O

N

 

R

D

C

O

R

E

Y

 

R

D

C
O

O
P
E
R
 
S
T

R/
W

 L
IN

E

104



LEGAL DESCRITPTION FOR 
 

WINTERVILLE INTERCONNECT SITE 
 

ANNEXATION 
 
 

Lying and being in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and more 
particularly described as follows: 
 
Being all of that 0.802 acre tract as shown on map entitled "Final Plat of Minor Subdivision 
Prepared For: The Town of Winterville on the Lands of Fenner Leslie Allen III et als", made 
by The Wooten Company, recorded July 2, 2015 in Map Book 79, Page 29, Pitt County 
Registry, said map being incorporated herein by reference for a more detailed description. 

105



 

 

Resolution No. 21-R-081 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
 

WINTERVILLE INTERCONNECT SITE 
PARCEL 82612 

 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition were 
received July 28, 2021 by the Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed in 
response to this request for annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition 
and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the result of the investigation. 
 
 

Adopted this the 9th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

106



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Old Tar Road Pump Station – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, and Resolution 21-R-082. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town of Winterville (property owner of Parcel 83155 – Pump Station) is applying for annexation into the 

Town limits. 

 

Old Tar Road Pump Station: 

Location: Old Tar Road south of its intersection with Worthington Road. 

Size: 0.15 Acres 

 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

❖ 1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (8/9/2021). 

❖ 2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (9/13/2021). 

❖ 3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (10/11/2021). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD 

Recommendation: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency. 

 

107



108



S 
80

°3
3'

55
" E

   
75

7.
54

'
(T

O
TA

L)

S 31°38'08" W   240.22'

(TOTAL)

1

"

 
P

I
P

E

 
C

O

N

T

R

O

L

 
C

O

R

N

E

R

:

 
N

 
1

5

°

 
4

7

'
 
4

3

"

 
W

 
1

,
1

1

7

.
3

6

'
 
O

F

 
A

 
M

A

G

 
N

A

I
L

A

T

 
T

H

E

 
I
N

T

E

R

S

E

C

T

I
O

N

 
O

F

L

A

U

R

I
E

 
E

L

L

I
S

 
A

N

D

 
O

L

D

 
T

A

R

 
R

O

A

D

S

N

:
 
6

4

8

,
3

3

2

.
1

9

E

:
 
2

,
4

8

0

,
5

5

4

.
5

2

1
"
 
P

I
P

E

1
"
 
P

I
P

E

1
"
 
P

I
P

E

1
"
 
P

I
P

E

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

K
A
R
L
 
W

.
 
M

C
L
A
W

H
O

R
N

 
J
R
.

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
1
2
9
-
8
2
4

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
7
6
-
1
8
1

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
8
0
-
4
7

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
1
6
2
8
7

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
8
.
6
9
3
3

T
O

T
A
L
 
C
A
L
C
U

L
A
T
E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
8
.
7
9
7

C
A
L
C
U

L
A
T
E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
 
M

I
N

U
S
 
N

E
W

 
S
U

B
D

I
V
I
S
I
O

N
:
 
8
.
6
5
0

0
 
O

L
D

 
T
A
R
 
R
D

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

K
A
R
L
 
W

.
 
M

C
L
A
W

H
O

R
N

 
J
R
.

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
1
7
5
6
-
3
0
2

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
1
7
5
6
-
3
0
6
A

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
6
8
8
3
7

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
0
.
7
3

5
1
1
1
 
O

L
D

 
T
A
R
 
R
D

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

A
C
E
S
 
F
O

R
 
A
U

T
I
S
M

,

A
 
N

O
R
T
H

 
C
A
R
O

L
I
N

A
 
N

O
N

-
P
R
O

F
I
T
 
C
O

R
P
O

R
A
T
I
O

N

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
7
2
9
-
2
3
0

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
7
8
-
1
6

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
1
4
6
4
3

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
2
3
.
6

0
 
W

O
R
T
H

I
N

G
T
O

N
 
R
D

.

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

C
H

R
I
S
T
 
C
O

V
E
N

A
N

T
 
S
C
H

O
O

L

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
2
4
8
-
4
4
5

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
7
8
-
1
6

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
8
2
2
0
0

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
8

0
 
W

O
R
T
H

I
N

G
T
O

N
 
R
D

.

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

G
R
E
G

O
R
Y
 
W

.
 
A
L
L
E
N

 
A
N

D
 
W

I
F
E
,

K
A
R
L
A
 
M

.
 
A
L
L
E
N

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
1
2
9
-
8
2
8

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
7
6
-
1
8
1

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
8
1
7
3
5

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
1
1

7
5
3
 
L
A
U

R
I
E
 
E
L
L
I
S
 
R
D

.

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

F
 
&

 
A
 
C
O

N
S
T
R
U

C
T
I
O

N
,
 
L
L
C

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
7
5
9
-
6
4
8

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
4
5
-
1
5
6

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
5
5
0
9
2

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
1
6
.
6
1

7
1
7
 
L
A
U

R
I
E
 
E
L
L
I
S
 
R
D

.

N
O

W
 
O

R
 
F
O

R
M

E
R
L
Y

K
A
R
L
 
W

.
 
M

C
L
A
W

H
O

R
N

 
J
R
.
 
A
N

D

K
A
R
L
A
 
M

C
L
A
W

H
O

R
N

 
A
L
L
E
N

,

A
S
 
T
E
N

A
N

T
S
 
I
N

 
C
O

M
M

O
N

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
1
7
5
6
-
3
0
7

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
1
7
5
6
-
3
1
0

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
6
8
8
3
8

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
0
.
8
4

5
1
1
3
 
O

L
D

 
T
A
R
 
R
D

N
 8

5°
00

'0
6"

 E
   

15
0.

14
'

N
 8

2°
01

'3
3"

 E
   

17
3.

47
'

215.88'

24.34'

72
5.

97
'

52
.2

5'
27

.7
5'

N 9°38'42" E   80.00'

S 
80

°2
1'

18
" E

   
80

.0
0'

N 9°50'59" E
60.90'

31
.5

7'

EXISTING GENERAL UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT M.B. 80 PG. 47

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

.
B

.
 
8

0
 
P

G
.
 
4

7

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

 

3

0

'

 

G

E

N

E

R

A

L

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

 

M

.

B

.

 

8

0

 

P

G

.

 

4

7

35
'

60
'

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
9

5
'
 
D

R
A

I
N

A
G

E
 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

P
I
T

T
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 
D

R
A

I
N

A
G

E
 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T

P
0

0
3

0
0

0
,
 
L

A
T

E
R

A
L

 
F

S
-
2

6

M
.
B

.
 
8

0
 
P

G
.
 
4

7

95
'

O

L

D

 

T

A

R

 

R

O

A

D

 

(

S

R

 

1

7

0

0

)

6

0

'

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

 

P

E

R

 

M

.

B

.

 

8

0

 

P

G

.

 

4

7

T
O

W
N

 
O

F
 
W

I
N

T
E
R
V
I
L
L
E

D
E
E
D

 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
3
4
4
6
-
3
6
0

"
N

E
W

 
L
O

T
"

M
A
P
 
B
O

O
K
 
&

 
P
A
G

E
 
8
0
-
4
7

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
I
D

#
 
8
3
1
5
5

G
I
S
/
D

E
E
D

E
D

 
A
C
R
E
A
G

E
:
 
0
.
1
4
7

5
1
1
5
 
O

L
D

 
T
A
R
 
R
D

.

M.B. 80 PG. 47

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

.
B

.
 
8

0
 
P

G
.
 
4

7

N
E
W

 
C
I
T
Y

L
I
M

I
T
 
L
I
N

E

N
 8

0°
21

'1
8"

 W
   

80
.0

0'
(T

O
TA

L)

S 9°38'42" W   80.00'

AN
N

EX
AT

IO
N

 M
AP

 F
O

R 
"N

EW
 L

O
T"

 -
 M

.B
. 8

0 
PG

.4
7

0.
14

7 
AC

RE
S

1 
O

F 
1

AC
RO

SS
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
O

F:
TO

W
N

 O
F 

W
IN

TE
RV

IL
LE

D
ee

d 
Bo

ok
: 3

44
6 

 P
ag

e:
 3

60
M

ap
 B

oo
k:

 8
0 

Pa
ge

: 4
7

FI
EL

D
 S

UR
VE

Y 
BY

:

TW
C

P
I
T
T
 
C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
I
N

T
E
R
V
I
L
L
E
 
T
O

W
N

S
H

I
P

N
O

R
T
H

 
C
A
R
O

L
I
N

A

FI
EL

D
 S

UR
VE

Y 
D

AT
E:

N
/A

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y:

SE
H

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
o.

:

28
53

-A
P

D
O

CU
M

EN
T 

N
o.

:

28
53

AP
-C

00
1

SH
EE

T 
N

o.
:

SE
H

D
AT

E:

07
/2

3/
20

21

VI
CI

N
IT

Y 
M

AP
 (N

O
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

)

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
60

'

30
'

60
'

0

3
0
0
 
S

.
 
M

a
i
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 

· 
W

i
n
s
t
o
n
-
S

a
l
e
m

,
 
N

C
 
2
7
1
0
1

(
8
0
3
)
 
7
2
2
-
5
3
2
6
 · 
t
h
e
w

o
o
t
e
n
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
.
c
o
m

L
i
c
e
n
s
e
 
N

u
m

b
e
r
 
:
 
F

-
0
1
1
5

C:\Users\shealy\Desktop\2853AP_Annex_Plat_PS_SEH.dwg   SHEALY   7/23/2021 2:40 PM

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

N
O

T 
FO

R 
RE

CO
RD

AT
IO

N
,

CO
N

VE
YA

N
CE

, O
R 

SA
LE

S

TH
IS

 M
AP

 W
AS

 P
RE

PA
RE

D 
FR

O
M

 R
EC

O
RD

ED
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 A

N
D 

N
O

T 
FR

O
M

 A
N

 A
CT

U
AL

 S
U

RV
EY

.
M

AP
 S

HO
W

IN
G 

AR
EA

 A
N

N
EX

ED
 B

Y
TO

W
N

 O
F 

W
IN

TE
RV

IL
LE

, N
.C

.
O

RD
IN

AN
CE

 N
O

:_
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

   
AR

EA
: 0

.1
47

 A
CR

ES
AC

CE
PT

ED
 F

O
R 

TH
E 

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

IN
TE

RV
IL

LE

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

M
AY

O
R

DA
TE

LE
GE

N
D

CO
M

PU
TE

D 
PO

IN
T 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

N
O

TE
D

DE
ED

 B
O

O
K

D.
B.

BO
O

K 
O

F 
M

AP
S

B.
M

.
PA

GE
PG

.
SQ

U
AR

E 
FE

ET
SF

RI
GH

T 
O

F 
W

AY
R/

W

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
LI

N
E 

(T
YP

E 
AS

 N
O

TE
D)

O
L
D

 
T
A
R
 
R
D

C
O

O
P
E
R
 
S
T

W

O

R

T

H

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
R

D

B

A

Y

B

E

R

R

Y

 

L

N

L
A
U

R
I
E
 
E
L
L
I
S
 
R
D

SI
TE

R/
W

 L
IN

E

109



LEGAL DESCRITPTION 
OLD TAR ROAD PUMP STATION 

 
  

 

110



 

 

Resolution No. 21-R-082 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
 

OLD TAR ROAD PUMP STATION 
PARCEL 83155 

 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition were 
received July 28, 2021 by the Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed in 
response to this request for annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition 
and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the result of the investigation. 
 
 

Adopted this the 9th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

111



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Fire Department Truck Bays Fire Sprinkler Project. 

Action Requested: Award of Construction Contract to Berry Building Group. 

Attachment: Bid Tabulation. 

Prepared By: Robert Sutton, Electric Director Date: 7/27/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The Winterville Fire Department Truck Bay Fire Sprinkler Construction Project was initially advertised June 

16, 2021 with APG Media of Eastern North Carolina. Corresponding specification review periods and walk-

thru dates for interested parties were established and a bid opening was set for June 29, 2021 at 4:00 pm. 

Only two bids were received by the Town at the specified date and time of the bid opening. Hence, a second 

round of advertisement(s) took place on July 1, 2021. 

The second advertisement, was again, accompanied by a corresponding specification review period and 

facilities walk-thru opportunities for interested parties. A second bid opening date and time of July 14, 2021 

at 4:00 pm was established and saw two bids received. Receipt of two bids after the second round of 

advertisements met the associated bidding requirements and the bids were opened. The lowest responsible 

bidder was determined to be Berry Building Group with a bid of $101,435. 

 

Budgetary Impact: Sufficient funding ($110,000) was appropriated in the FY ’21 budget for the project. The 
Budget Amendment brought before Council tonight includes funding for the project. 

Recommendation: Award of contract for $101,435 to Berry Construction for the construction of the 
Winterville Fire Department Truck Bay Fire Sprinkler System. 

 

112



 

July 14, 2021 

 

Owner:   Town of Winterville 

  2571 Railroad St. 

  PO Box 1459 

  Winterville, NC 28590 

 

Project: Police Fire & Rescue Building 

  Truck Bay Fire Protection Improvements 

  2593 Railroad St.  

  Winterville, NC 28590 

 

Engineer: McLawhorn Engineering 

  One Commerce Sq. Suite 204 

  Washington NC, 27889 

  (919) 608-3738 

 

Bid Date: July 13, 2021 4:00 PM 

 

CONTRACTOR BID 

BERRY BUILDING GROUP $101,435 

CA LEWIS $152,900 

 

113



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2021-2022-1. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 2021-2022-1. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 7/30/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the first budget amendment for the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses the annual roll of open Purchase Orders from the prior year. Our process carries 

over only necessary open PO’s into the next fiscal year. Once we have adopted the annual budget, we then 

bring forward the items that were started in the prior year. 

The total across all funds is $1,242,873. 

• General: $885,590.47 

• Recreation: $814.16 

• Electric: $338,407.76 

• Water: $1,527 

• Storm Water: $16,534 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $1,242,873. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

114



 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Increase Decrease

Fund Balance Contribution 10 3831 General Fund 885,590                          

Fund Balance Contribution 15 3831 Recreation Fund 814                                  

Fund Balance Contribution 60 3831 Electric Fund 338,408                          

Fund Balance Contribution 61 3831 Water Fund 1,527                               

Fund Balance Contribution 63 3831 Storm Water Fund 16,534                            

Total 1,242,873$           -$                      

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Department Fund Increase Decrease

Contract Service 10-4120-01-4233 Finance General Fund 4,500                               

Capital Outlay 10-4120-01-7150 Finance General Fund 300,700                          

Supplies and Materials 10-4120-02-4230 Inspections/Gis General Fund 1,016                               

Contract Service 10-4120-02-4233 Inspections/Gis General Fund 8,450                               

Capital Outlay 10-4120-04-7150 Information Tech General Fund 20,822                            

Contract Service 10-4130-00-4233 Planning General Fund 5,921                               

Contract Service 10-4260-00-4233 Public Buildings General Fund 3,000                               

Maint & Repair - Facility 10-4260-00-4239 Public Buildings General Fund 16,678                            

Capital Outlay 10-4260-00-7150 Public Buildings General Fund 4,700                               

Capital Outlay 10-4260-00-7150 Public Buildings General Fund 110,000                          

Chemicals 10-4380-02-4317 Mosquito Control General Fund 5,245                               

Capital Outlay 10-4510-02-7150 Public Works General Fund 404,558                          

Cal Ripken All-Star 15-6010-00-4285 Recreation Recreation 814                                  

OSHA 60-7110-00-4229 Electric Fund 3,930                               

Supplies and Materials 60-7110-00-4230 Electric Fund 70,868                            

Engineering 60-7110-00-4232 Electric Fund 50,590                            

Departmental Improvements 60-7110-00-4260 Electric Fund 5,100                               

New Equipment 60-7110-22-4274 Electric Fund 18,000                            

Water Meter Replacements 60-7110-22-4306 Electric Fund 34,233                            

Capital Outlay 60-8010-00-7150 Electric Fund 155,687                          

Supplies and Materials 61-7210-00-4230 Water Fund 1,527                               

Engineering 63-7420-00-4232 Storm Water Fund 16,534                            

Total 1,242,873$           -$                      

Mayor

Town Clerk 

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2021-2022-1

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 

30, 2021:

Adopted the 9th day of August 2021.

115



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Tax Settlement FY 2020-2021. 

Action Requested: Accept the tax settlement for 2020-2021 fiscal year. 

Attachment: Certified Tax settlement. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 7/30/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The State of North Carolina requires that each year the tax collector of a given municipality provide a 

settlement to the Governing Board. The settlement statement gives the Town Council a look at the collection, 

discoveries, and adjustment for the previous year. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Accept the Tax Settlement. 

 

116



117



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Charge the Tax Collector with collection of the 2021-2022 tax levy. 

Action Requested: Charge the Tax Collector. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 7/30/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The State of North Carolina requires that each year the Tax Collector be charged with the collection of the 

tax levy for taxes. This year the levy is $ $3,989,832.70. 

Budgetary Impact: $3,989,832.70. 

Recommendation: Charge the Tax Collector with collection of the 2021-2022 tax levy. 

 

118



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: The Town of Winterville Code of Ordinance section 96.04 requires person(s) wishing to engage in 
activities regulated by this ordinance to acquire a specific permit approved by the Chief of Police, or his 
designee. A permit granted under this section requires an administration fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00). The 
Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee is requesting exemption from this fee. 

Action Requested: Approval. 

Attachment: Parade Route. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The code of ordinance requires all organizations that wish to hold a parade submit information describing the 

route, responsible persons and their contact numbers. The Town Council must approve the issuance of the 

permit based on this and any other information they request. The Winterville Watermelon Festival committee 

is expected to submit a parade application in the immediate future to the Chief of Police. The Organization’s 

president is Alton Wadford. The parade contact person is Beth Fitch. The date of the parade is August 28th, 

2021 at 10:00 am. The lineup will begin at 9:00 am and will end at approximately 11:00 am. The parade 

route is attached. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Approval. 

 

119



120



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee to Limit the use of the 
Parking lot at the Winterville Recreation Park and Request a Change in Traffic Patterns from August 26th - 
28th , 2021 in support of the 2021 Watermelon Festival. 

Action Requested: Approval. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee request that the parking lot located at the Winterville 

Recreation Park be utilized for parking during the festival for the following: 

• Handicapped, VIP, Employee, Bands, Vendors, Emergency Services, and other Festival staff. 

Additionally, the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee and the Chief of Police request a change in the 

following traffic patterns to help ensure public safety: 

Sylvania Street- West bound vehicular traffic only from Ange Street to Church Street, and East bound 

pedestrian traffic only from Church Street to Ange Street. 

• Friday, August 23rd 4:00pm until 12:00am. 

• Saturday, August 24th 3:00pm until 12:00am. 

Division Street- From Church Street to Park entrance.  

• Closed Thursday, August 22nd at 4:00pm until 12:00am. 

• Closed Friday, August 23rd at 4:00pm until 12:00am. 

• Closed Saturday, August 24th at 8:00am until 12:00am. 

Barrel Street – From Ange Street to Forbes Street. 

• No parking on south side of street during festival hours.  

• No parking on south side of street during festival hours. 

Windmill Street – From Ange Street to Forbes Street. 

• No parking on south side of street during festival hours. 

Gregory Lane- No parking in this cul-de-sac on street during festival hours. 

No parking on west side of Ange street from Blount street to Sylvania street. 

* Note: Access to private residences on closed streets available by permits. 

To promote optimum traffic flow and public safety, changes to the Watermelon Festival Committee’s request 

may be altered to accommodate Festival requirements. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Approval. 

 

121



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Request from the Watermelon Festival Committee to Suspend the Winterville Park 
Hours Limitation for August 26th - 28th, 2021. 

Action Requested: Approval. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town of Winterville’s policy states that the Winterville Recreation Park may not be used after the hours 

of 10:30 pm. The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee requests that this policy be suspended for the 

2021 Winterville Watermelon Festival to be held August 26th - 28th, 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Approval. 

 

122



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee for the Placement of 
Signs and Banners on Town Property and Public Right-of-Ways. 

Action Requested: Approval. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee requests approval for the placement of signs and banners 

on town property and along public rights-of-way announcing the location and times for the upcoming 2021 

Watermelon Festival. The signs will begin being erected on or about August 9th, 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Approval. 

 

123



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee for use of Parks and Recreation 
Bathroom facilities from August 26, 2021 through August 28, 2021. 

Action Requested: Approve Request. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation Date: 7/27/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee has requested the use of all bathrooms, two (2) men’s and 

two (2) women’s, at the Winterville Recreation Park during the Watermelon Festival. The scheduled request 

is as follows: 

8/26/2021 – 5 pm to 11 pm 

8/27/2021 – 5 pm to 11 pm 

8/28/2021 – 8 am to 11 pm 

The Festival Committee will provide all paper products and they will hire and provide janitorial services to 

keep the bathrooms clean during these times. 

Recreation Staff has discussed this issue with the Watermelon Festival Committee. Staff requests approval 

of the Committee’s Request. 

Budgetary Impact: Cost of water and electricity used during the Festival Period. 

Recommendation: Approve Request. 

 

124



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Ordinance Amendment for Composition of Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. 

Action Requested: Approve Ordinance. 

Attachment: Ordinance 21-O-082. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The attached ordinance reflects the changes approved at the June 14, 2021 Regular Council Meeting. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Ordinance. 

 

125



ORDINANCE NO. 21-O-082 
 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina that Title III Chapter 
32 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Winterville is hereby amended as follows: 
 
CHAPTER 32: TOWN ORGANIZATIONS – PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT. 
 
§ 32.045 CREATION. 

Under the direct control of the Town Manager, there is hereby established a Parks and Recreation 
Department and the position of Director. Further, a Town Parks and Recreation Advisory Board is 
hereby created by the town, which shall be designated as The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board of 
the Town of Winterville. 
 
§ 32.046 COMPOSITION. 

The Parks and Recreation Department is comprised of a Director and a Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board. The Director shall be hired and appointed by the Town Manager. The Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board of the town shall be comprised of nine members and one alternate member, 
of which seven shall reside within the town limits at the time of their appointment, and two shall reside 
outside of the corporate limits of the town, but within the limits of the extraterritorial jurisdiction at the 
time of their appointment, and one alternate member who may reside either within the town limits or 
outside of the corporate limits of the town, but within the limits of the extraterritorial jurisdiction at the 
time of his or her appointment. 
 
§ 32.047 APPOINTMENT. 

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board members shall serve two-year staggered terms and shall 
be appointed by the Council. Members may be reappointed, with no limit on the numbers of terms 
served. No member shall receive compensation for his or her services as a member of the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board. 
 
§ 32.048 VACANCIES AND REMOVAL OF MEMBERS. 

(A) Movement from within the town limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction will result in immediate 
removal from the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. The Council will subsequently appoint 
a replacement to serve the remainder of the unexpired term. 

(B) Meeting attendance. 
(1) Absences caused by illness, injury, death, bereavement, personal emergency, or other 

similar situations shall be recognized as an excused absence. Excused absences are 
generally defined as medical or family emergencies or unavoidable business/personal 
conflicts. 

(2) Any member who is absent from more than 25% of regular meetings or accumulates two 
consecutive unexcused absences within a fiscal year (beginning July 1) shall be 
replaced. 

(3) In the event of long-term absence due to illness, medical procedure, injury, or other 
extenuating significant personal circumstance, the Board may deem it necessary and 
appropriate to grant a leave of absence until the affected Board Member is able to return. 
Absences accrued during an approved leave of absence period shall not be subject to 
the provisions stated above. 

(C) The Town Council may remove a member as deemed necessary. All vacancies occurring on 
the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will be filled by the Council for the remainder of the 
unexpired term. 

 

126



The remainder of Chapter 32 is not amended pursuant to this Ordinance. 
 
This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 
 
 
 
 

Adopted this the 9th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

127



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation. 

Action Requested: Adoption of Resolution Accepting Loan Offer. 

Attachment: Resolution of Acceptance (21-R-083). 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town applied for funding assistance for sewer pump station rehabilitation. The NC Department of 

Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) reviewed the funding application and 

approved the Town of Winterville for loan assistance from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) 

in the amount of $1,974,200 with $500,000 in principal forgiveness. 

The estimated loan amount for the project is $1,474,200, for a term of twenty (20) years with an interest rate 

of 0%. 

Budgetary Impact: Repayment of loan with annual installments over twenty (20) years upon project 
completion. 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution Accepting Loan Offer. 

 

128



 Resolution No. 21-R-083 

 

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving Loan and Grant Act of 1987 has 

authorized the making of loans and grants to aid eligible units of government in financing the 

cost of construction of wastewater treatment works, wastewater collection systems, and water 

supply systems, water conservation projects, and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources has 

offered a State Revolving Loan in the amount of $1,974,200 for the construction of sanitary 

sewer collection system rehabilitation, and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville (Applicant) intends to construct said project in 

accordance with the approved plans and specifications, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

WINTERVILLE: 

That the Town of Winterville does hereby accept the State Revolving Loan offer of 

$1,974,200. 

That the Town of Winterville does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina 

Department of Environment and Natural Resources that all items specified in the loan offer; 

Section II Assurances will be adhered to. 

That Terri L. Parker, Town Manager, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection 

with such application or the project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute 

such other documents as may be required in connection with the application. 

That the Town of Winterville has substantially complied or will substantially comply with 

all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project 

and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 

 

Adopted this the 9th day of August 2021 at Winterville, North Carolina. 
 
 
 
 
  

(Signature of Chief Executive Officer) 
 
 
 
 
 Town Manager  

(Title)  

129



 Resolution No. 21-R-083 

 
 
CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER 

 

The undersigned duly qualified Town Clerk of the Town of Winterville does hereby certify: That 

the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the 

acceptance of the loan offer with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally 

convened meeting of the Town Council duly held on the 9th day of August 2021; and, further, 

that such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my 

office. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 

 

I have hereunto set my hand this 9th day of August 2021. 

 

 

 

 

  

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

130



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Stormwater MS4 Permit – Notice of Violation. 

Action Requested: Adoption of Resolution Declaring Support for Stormwater Management Program. 

Attachment: Notice of Violation, Audit Report, and Resolution of Support/Compliance (21-R-084). 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

On May 26, 2021, staff from the NCDEQ conducted a compliance audit of the Town’s storm sewer system. 

The audit identified major deficiencies with the specific components of the MS4 permit. These deficiencies 

constitute a violation of the Clean Water Act and have associated enforcement actions. To address the 

deficiencies outlined in the attached Notice of Violation (NOV), the Town is required to complete actions also 

outlined in the NOV. The first item is the adoption of a resolution by the Council declaring support for a 

compliant stormwater management program. Total budgetary impact is not fully known at this time. It is 

estimated the development of a Stormwater Management Plan and responding to the NOV will cost 

approximately $30,000 in consulting fees. Non-compliance could result in a fine of up to $25,000 per 

violation. 

Budgetary Impact: Consulting fees are estimated to be approximately $30,000. 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution. 

 

131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



 

 

Resolution No.: 21-R-054 

Date Adopted: August 9, 2021 

 
RESOLUTION AFFIRMING THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE COUNCIL’S SUPPORT 

REGARDING IMPLEMENTATION OF A COMPLIANT NPDES MS4 STORMWATER PROGRAM 
 

A RESOLUTION to develop and implement a compliant stormwater management program that meets 

the requirements of the Town of Winterville National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit number NCS000507 to discharge stormwater, 

inclusive of the required Stormwater Management Plan to be prepared by the Town of Winterville and 

approved by the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality. 

WHEREAS, Section 402(p) of the federal Clean Water Act requires NPDES permits for stormwater 

discharges from municipal separate storm sewer systems; and 

WHEREAS, in North Carolina, NPDES Permits are issued by the North Carolina Department of 

Environmental Quality; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality issued the Town of Winterville its 

NPDES MS4 Permit for discharge of stormwater; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville was issued Notice of Violation number NOV-2021-PC-0307 on June 

4, 2021 for noncompliance with the issued NPDES MS4 Permit; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville acknowledges the specific Notice of Violation requirement to obtain 

a new individual NPDES MS4 Permit; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville acknowledges the specific Notice of Violation requirement to 

conduct a self-audit of permit compliance for the balance of permit requirements not specifically 

audited by the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality, and to develop a draft Stormwater 

Management Plan to comply with Section 402(p)(3)(B)(iii) of the Clean Water Act, 40 CFR 122.34(b) and 

NPDES MS4 Permit requirements, and to submit its draft Stormwater Management Plan to the North 

Carolina Department of Environmental Quality no later than October 14, 2021 for review and approval; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville acknowledges the specific Notice of Violation requirement to adopt 

a Council Resolution to implement a compliant and enforceable stormwater management program as 

defined by both the NPDES MS4 Permit number NCS000507 and the required new Stormwater 

Management Plan, and said resolution is to be submitted to the North Carolina Department of 

Environmental Quality no later than August 16, 2021; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville acknowledges the requirement to provide adequate funding and 

staffing to implement a Stormwater Management Program that complies with its NPDES MS4 Permit 

and approved Stormwater Management Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville acknowledges that North Carolina Department of Environmental 

Quality enforcement action and penalties could result from non-compliance with the specific 

requirements in Notice of Violation number NOV-2021-PC-0307; and 

161



 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville acknowledges that any North Carolina Department of Environmental 

Quality enforcement action and penalties may not prohibit the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

from taking its own enforcement action for non-compliance with the issued NPDES MS4 Permit. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Town of Winterville hereby affirms its 

support for development and implementation of a compliant NPDES MS4 Stormwater Program. 

 

 

 

    

Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor  Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

 

 

 

    

Ben E. Williams, Stormwater Program  Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Administrator (Interim) 

 

 

 

 

 SEAL 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED BY the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina the 9th day of August 2021 and 

signed in authentication thereof the 9th day of August 2021. 

162



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Wooten Company – Task Order No. 32 – Stormwater Management Plan. 

Action Requested: Approval of Task Order. 

Attachment: Engineering Services Agreement. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

The subject Task Order No. 32 is for creating the Town’s Stormwater Management Plan for compliance with 

the MS4 Audit/Notice of Violation received June 4, 2021. The Engineer will provide services to assist the 

Town with responding to the NOV and development of written guidance for the required plan. Tasks will 

include the following: 

• Develop Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program Plan. 

• MS4 Operation and Maintenance Program Plan. 

• Municipal Stormwater Control Measures Operation and Maintenance Program Plan. 

• Municipal Self-Audit. 

• Stormwater Management Plan Development. 

• Assist with submission of NPDES MS4 permit application. 

Budgetary Impact: This work will be done on an hourly basis with a not to exceed cost of $28,500. Funds 
for this effort were included in the approved budget for this fiscal year. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of contract. 

 

163



164



165



166



167



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: The Police Department is requesting our continued participation and contract with Pitt County 
Schools for the Town of Winterville to supply one (1) School Resource Officer (SRO) at A.G. Cox (primarily) 
and secondary duties at W.H. Robinson and Creekside Elementary Schools. 

Action Requested: Enter into the SRO contract with Pitt County Schools. 

Attachment: Proposed SRO Contract. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 7/20/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Pitt County Schools has requested that the Town of Winterville enter into a contract to supply a School 

Resource Officer (SRO) in the County schools within our jurisdiction. The County has proposed a one (1) 

year contract which will pay the officers salary and benefits ($70,541.95) and the Town of Winterville is 

responsible for the equipment, uniforms, vehicle and training. This officer will primarily be assigned to A.G. 

Cox Middle Cchool but will frequent W.H. Robinson Elementary as well as Creekside Elementary as needed 

or prudent. The County will make 12 monthly installments to the Town to reimburse the salary and benefits 

cost. As with other SRO’s throughout the County, this Contract is renewed annually to address changes in 

salary or details. 

Budgetary Impact: The Department’s current budget will absorb personal equipment, uniforms and training 
costs. 

Recommendation: Approval. 

 

168



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  1 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

 

PITT COUNTY 

WINTERVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

2021–2022 

 

 This Winterville Police Department School Resource Officer Program Agreement for the 

2021–2022 School Year (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this the __ day of June, 2021, by and 

between The Pitt County Board of Education, a body politic and corporate, organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “School System”) and the Town of Winterville, a 

municipal corporation in the State of North Carolina (the “Town”) (individually “Party” and 

collectively the “Parties”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town has established, organized, and maintained an accredited law 

enforcement agency, the Winterville Police Department (“WPD”), with territorial jurisdiction and all 

law enforcement powers as authorized by statute, case law, and the common law of the State of North 

Carolina within the corporate limits of the Town, pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 160A-281 and N.C.G.S.             

§ 160A-285; 

 

 WHEREAS, the School System currently serves more than 23,000 students in 37 schools in 

Pitt County; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have a close working relationship and desire to create a safe and 

secure environment on the campuses of the School System which are located within the corporate 

limits of the Town; 

 

 WHEREAS, this Agreement establishes the Parties’ duties and obligations concerning the 

Town’s involvement in the School System’s School Resource Officer (“SRO”) Program (the “SRO 

Program”) utilizing WPD officers in and upon the School System’s schools, which are located within 

the corporate limits of the Town and are part of this Agreement; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties recognize the benefits of the Town’s participation in the SRO 

Program; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town agrees to provide to the School System and manage one (1) full-time 

SRO and provide supplies and equipment necessary to support the SRO, and the School System agrees 

to reimburse the Town for its expenses in providing the said SRO for the SRO Program, as set forth 

herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to set forth in this Agreement the specific terms and conditions 

of the services to be performed and provided by the Parties pursuant to the SRO Program. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and 

agreements contained herein below, and for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1.0 Goals and Objectives.  The Parties share the following goals and objectives regarding the 

SRO Program. 

 

169



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  2 

 

1.1 To provide a safe, inclusive, and positive learning environment for students, educators, 

principals and assistant principals (individually “school administrator” and collectively 

“school administrators” unless otherwise stated), volunteers, and other members of the 

school community; and 

 

1.2 To foster an efficient and cohesive SRO program that will build positive relationships 

between law enforcement officers and school administrators, parents, and students. 

 

2.0 SRO Program Manual.  To effectuate the goals and objectives of the SRO Program, the 

Parties have developed and agree to be bound by the terms set forth in an SRO Program Manual 

which establishes standards governing SRO conduct and the relationship between the SROs 

and school administrators.  The SRO Manual is attached hereto as Attachment A and is hereby 

incorporated into this Agreement.   

 

2.1 No later than October 31, 2021, school administrators at schools where SROs are 

assigned and SROs must read the SRO Manual and execute an Acknowledgement.  The 

Acknowledgement is attached hereto as Attachment B and is hereby incorporated into 

this Agreement.    

 

2.2 The Parties agree that their employees will adhere to the conditions set forth in the SRO 

Manual.   

 

2.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to bar additional training to foster 

collaboration between school administrators and SROs or for any other purpose 

deemed necessary by the Parties. 

 

3.0 The Town’s Obligations. 

 

3.1 The Town agrees to employ one (1) SRO during the term of this Agreement for primary 

placement at A.G. Cox Middle School with supporting duties at W.H. Robinson and 

Creekside Elementary Schools.  The SRO assigned by the Town may be assigned to and 

used among any and all public schools within the jurisdiction of WPD.  The assignments 

can be changed upon agreement by the Parties. 

 

3.1.1 In the event that the SRO serving under this Agreement shall cease to serve as 

an SRO, the Town shall, with written approval from the School System, 

provide a replacement WPD officer or replacement officers to continue the 

Town’s obligations as herein stated for the remaining term of the Agreement 

at no change in monthly reimbursement due under the Agreement for the 

remainder of the term.   

 

3.1.2 It is expressly understood and agreed that temporary absences by the SRO shall 

be minimized to the greatest extent possible during the school year.  In the 

event the SRO is temporarily absent from work, the Town shall provide notice 

of the SRO’s absence to the affected school administrators and the School 

System’s Security Department (“Security Department”) pursuant to Section 8.0 

herein. 

 

170



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  3 

 

3.1.3 If the SRO’s temporary absence was not scheduled in advance (e.g. sickness, death 

of a family member, medical emergency, etc.) or the SRO is absent from work for 

a scheduled absence (e.g. vacation, continuing education, etc.), the Town, to the 

extent reasonably practicable, agrees to assign another officer to substitute for the 

SRO.  In no event, shall the School System be without a certified law enforcement 

officer for more than five (5) consecutive school days, and on any day that the 

School System is without a replacement certified law enforcement officer, the 

Town will increase patrols in the vicinity of the SRO’s assigned schools, 

walkthrough the SRO’s assigned schools at least three times per day during each 

day that the SRO is absent, and shall have an officer meet at least once daily with 

school administration to discuss any concerns.   

 

3.1.4 Except as otherwise may be required by the Town in its sole discretion to 

address a serious emergency, the Town should not utilize the SRO during the 

designated workday for duties other than those set forth in this Agreement.   

 

3.2 The Town agrees to provide and administer the SRO’s salary and employment benefits 

in accordance with the applicable salary schedules and employment practices of the 

Town, including but not necessarily limited to: sick leave, annual leave, retirement 

compensation, workers’ compensation insurance, dental insurance, and health 

insurance.  The SRO shall be subject to all other personnel policies and practices of the 

Town.  To the extent that there are conflicts between Town policy related to salary and 

employment benefits and the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Town policy 

related to salary and employment benefits shall control. 

 

3.3 The Town shall only assign an SRO to the School system who meets all of the 

following basic qualifications: 

 

3.3.1 Have at least three (3) years of law enforcement experience, unless this 

requirement is waived by the Parties. 

 

3.3.2 Complete an SRO training course which is approved by the North Carolina 

Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission.  If the SRO 

does not possess certification of completion of an SRO training course which 

is approved by the North Carolina Criminal Justice Education and Training 

Standards Commission, the Town will ensure that the SRO participates in the 

next available SRO training course offering which is approved by the North 

Carolina Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission to 

obtain this certification. 

 

3.3.3 Complete Crisis Intervention Training (“CIT”) certification through an 

accredited college, or other CIT provider approved by the Town.  If the SRO 

does not possess CIT certification, the Town will ensure that the SRO 

participates in the next available course offering to obtain CIT certification. 

 

3.3.4 Possess knowledge of the applicable federal and state laws, Town and Pitt 

County ordinances, and the School System’s policies and regulations. 

 

171



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  4 

 

3.3.5 Be capable of conducting in-depth criminal investigations and investigations 

of delinquencies. 

 

3.3.6 Possess an even temperament. 

 

3.3.7 Be capable of setting a good example for students.   

 

3.3.8 Receive annual training in school-based violence.  

 

3.3.9 Possess positive experience working with youth and/or in a school setting and 

should be willing and able to serve as mentors for students. 

 

3.3.10 Have no substantiated evidence of harassment, discrimination, improper use of 

force, or other serious performance issues in his or her work history that would 

make the officer inappropriate for performing duties as an SRO. 

 

3.3.11 Possess communication skills that would enable the officer to function 

effectively within the school environment. 

 

3.4 The Town acknowledges that the requirements of N.C.G.S. § 115C-332.1 apply to this 

Agreement.  The Town shall conduct an annual check of all sworn law enforcement 

officers assigned as SROs on the North Carolina Sex Offender and Public Protection 

Registration Program, the North Carolina Sexually Violent Predator Registration 

Program, and the National Sex Offender Registry.  The Town certifies that no 

individual may provide services to the School System under this Agreement if he or 

she appears on any of the herein stated sex offender registries. 

 

3.5 The Town agrees to provide each SRO with all equipment which is not school-specific, 

including but not limited to the following equipment: 

 

3.5.1 The standard issue firearm and rounds of ammunition for each SRO. 

 

3.5.2 Office supplies and forms required in the performance of each SRO’s duties. 

 

3.5.3 Appropriate Town vehicles to perform the duties and assignments under this 

Agreement. 

 

3.6 The Town shall ensure that the SRO maintain minimum in-service training and 

certification requirements as would normally apply to all other certified officers in 

addition to any training and certifications required for SROs.  Except in rare 

circumstances when training is not otherwise available, all training shall be conducted 

during the summer months when school is not in session.   

 

3.7 The Town shall designate a regularly employed law enforcement officer (“SRO 

Supervisor”) to supervise the assigned SRO and to coordinate the functions of the SRO 

in the SRO Program with the Security Department.  The duties of the SRO Supervisor 

shall include ensuring SRO compliance with directives and policies of the Town and the 

School System, coordinating SRO scheduling and work hours (e.g. vacation requests, sick 

leave, training, etc.), communicating all emergencies or any other useful information to the 

172



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  5 

 

School System’s Security Town, communicating any temporary SRO replacements with 

the name of the officer and contact information to the School System’s Security Town, 

addressing concerns and complaints regarding performance and conduct of SROs in 

collaboration with the School System and in accordance with Town protocols. 

 

3.8 The Town shall ensure that the SRO Supervisor and any other required representatives 

attend meetings with School System to discuss issues relevant to the SRO Program and 

its operations.  The Town shall also ensure that the SRO meets with School System 

personnel at least once annually to discuss issues relevant to the SRO Program and its 

operations.  The School System shall ensure that the scheduling of the herein stated 

meetings does not conflict with the Town’s needs, including SRO assignments. 

 

3.8.1 The School System shall provide annual training to the SRO no later than 

September 30, 2021.  This annual training shall include training on the School 

System’s behavioral support and discipline policies, the School System’s SRO 

policies and procedures, a discussion of the School System’s commitment to 

using its policies to ensure a safe and orderly educational environment and the 

fair and equitable treatment of all students when addressing student behavior, 

the role of SROs in making disciplinary referrals when necessary,  the limited 

role of SROs within the School System’s behavioral support and discipline 

system, and the documentation that must be developed and maintained by 

SROs in the SRO Program. 

 

4.0 The School System’s Obligations. 

 

4.1 The School System shall reimburse the Town for the SRO provided at a total annual cost 

of SEVENTY THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FORTY-ONE DOLLARS and 95/100 

($70,541.95).  The School System shall reimburse the Town in twelve (12) monthly 

payments payable in advance or on the day before the last day of each month starting July 

1, 2021 and continuing through June 30, 2022.  Overtime and additional duty assignments 

are not included in this reimbursement and may not be added to the monthly invoice or 

invoiced separately. 

 
4.1.1 If the SRO ceases to serve as an SRO and no replacement is appointed and assigned 

by the Town for the remainder of the term of this Agreement, monthly payments 

due from the School System pursuant to paragraph 4.1 will be reduced accordingly. 

 

4.1.2 Except as provided in Section 4.2.2, in the event an SRO is absent or unable to 

perform the duties under this Agreement, the reasons for such absence or 

unavailability are not attributable to the School System (either the Town requires 

the SRO to be absent or the SRO is absent due to sickness, disability, otherwise 

not available), and the Town fails to provide the School System with adequate 

supplemental coverage as set forth in Section 3.1.3, then the School System may 

reduce the compensation payable to the Town under this Agreement on a prorated 

basis and such reduction shall be credited or repaid to the School System. 

 

4.1.3 In the event of an emergency when the SRO is ordered by the Town to leave his/ 

her school duty station during normal duty hours as described in Section 3.1.4 

above and to perform other services for the Town, the time spent shall not be 

considered hours worked under this Agreement.  In such an event, the monthly 

173



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  6 

 

compensation paid by the School System to the Town shall be reduced by the 

number of hours of SRO services not provided to the School System or the hours 

shall be made up in a manner determined by mutual agreement of the Parties. 

 

4.2 The maximum number of hours that the SRO shall be on-duty in a work day under this 

Agreement shall not exceed the maximum number of hours allowed by APD’s policy.  

Specific SRO duty hours at a particular school shall be set by mutual agreement 

between the School System, at the direction of the principal of the school to which the 

SRO is assigned, and the Town.  The duty hours shall begin when the SRO arrives at 

the destination assigned by the principal and shall end when the SRO leaves the 

destination assigned by the principal, thereby ending the SRO’s work day.  The actual 

duty hours for each officer shall be recorded on time sheets provided by the Town, and 

the principal or the principal’s designee of the school to which the SRO is assigned 

shall review and sign the time sheet of the SRO each work period.  The principal, or 

the principal’s designee of the school to which the SRO is assigned, shall approve in 

writing any overtime of any SRO, and such overtime costs shall be reimbursed by the 

School System to the Town upon receipt of proper documentation.  The principal of 

the school to which the SRO is assigned shall provide the Town with an executed copy 

of the approved overtime for any SRO and the amount of overtime approved.  Such 

overtime will be compensated as indicated below and pursuant to personnel policy and 

practices of the Town and APD (“Town policy”) and overtime regulations contained 

in the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 

4.2.1 The Parties agree any overtime hours worked during the SRO’s pay period shall 

be compensated by the Town at the rate of time and one half for the overtime hours 

worked unless the SRO is permitted to adjust the SRO’s work schedule during that 

same pay period to reduce or eliminate the extra work hours, or a combination of 

both overtime pay and time off as agreed by the School System, the SRO, and the 

Town.   

 

4.2.2 Subject to the approval of the School System and Town, if an SRO elects to adjust 

the work schedule by taking time off to reduce or eliminate the extra work hours 

during a pay period, the Town will not be required to provide a law enforcement 

officer as a substitute, nor may the School System reduce the compensation paid 

to the Town for the time off taken by the SRO. 

 

4.2.3 It is understood and agreed that time spent by the SRO attending court cases arising 

from and/or out of his/ her employment as an SRO shall be considered as hours 

worked under this Agreement. 

 

4.3 The School System agrees to provide each SRO with the following: 

 

4.3.1 Suitable accommodations at school (i.e. a lockable room with limited access, 

telephone, desk, chair, computer, and filing cabinet).   

 

4.3.2 A radio with all school frequencies. 

 

4.3.3 Keys and key-card access and/or other identification to all assigned schools. 

 

174



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  7 

 

4.3.4 Reasonable opportunities to address students, teachers, school administrators, 

and parents about criminal justice, safety, and security issues. 

 

4.3.5 A dedicated parking space in an approved location for the SRO patrol car. 

 

4.3.6 A School System-issued cell phone. 

 

5.0 Employment, Assignment, and Control of School Resource Officers. 

 

5.1 The SRO under this Agreement will be employees of the Town and not an employee 

of the School System.  The SRO will be subject to the administration, supervision, and 

control of the Town, except as such administration, supervision, and control is subject 

to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

5.2 The Town, in its sole discretion, shall have the power and authority to hire, discharge, 

and discipline the SRO.  However, the School System shall evaluate annually the SRO 

Program and the performance of the SRO on forms developed jointly by the Parties 

and attached hereto as Attachment C.  Attachment C is hereby incorporated into this 

Agreement.  It is further understood that the School System’s evaluation of the SRO is 

advisory only and that the Town retains the final authority to evaluate each SRO.   

 

5.3 In addition to annual evaluations as herein stated, school administrators have been 

instructed by the School System to immediately advise the Security Specialist, John 

Jenkins, of the Security Department (the “Security Specialist”), in writing, if the SRO 

is not effectively performing his or her duties or responsibilities, and/or receives a 

complaint from a staff member, student, parent, or other member of the school 

community about actions or conduct of the SRO.  The Security Specialist will report 

written complaints to the SRO Supervisor, provide a copy of the written complaint to 

the SRO Supervisor, undertake an investigation into the allegations of the complaints, 

prepare a written investigative report which shall include findings of the Security 

Department’s investigation (“Security Department investigative report”), and shall 

provide the SRO Supervisor with a copy of the Security Department investigative 

report.  

 

5.3.1 If a school administrator observes or is advised that the SRO is continuing to 

engage in conduct that was the subject of a written complaint or a school 

administrator makes a third written complaint within two (2) academic years 

to the Security Department about the SRO and the allegations of this third 

written complaint within two (2) academic years is substantiated by the 

Security Department in a Security Department investigative report, the 

Security Department shall then recommend to the SRO Supervisor that the 

SRO be removed from the SRO Program, shall prepare a written report 

recommending removal, which shall include the factual basis for the 

recommendation and contain the written approval by the School System’s 

Superintendent (“Security Department removal recommendation report”), and 

shall provide the SRO Supervisor with a copy of the Security Department 

removal recommendation report. 

 

175



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  8 

 

5.3.2 Upon receipt of the Security Department removal recommendation report and 

if upon review by the Town, there is verifiable, documented evidence of 

ongoing performance issues that have persisted despite the SRO being 

provided notice and an opportunity to improve, the Town shall agree to remove 

the SRO from serving in the SRO Program. 

 

5.3.3 In addition, if the Security Department documents SRO misconduct that 

threatens the health or safety of students or staff, the Security Department will 

immediately notify the SRO Supervisor of the SRO’s misconduct and provide 

copies of such all records documenting such misconduct.  The Town shall 

promptly remove the SRO from serving in the SRO Program until the 

completion of the Town’s review of the misconduct as alleged, consistent with 

the Town’s policies and ordinances and this Agreement. 

 

5.3.4 Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the 

School System’s Superintendent from preventing the access of any individual, 

including the assigned SRO, to School System property if the School System’s 

Superintendent determines it is in the best interest of the health and safety of 

students.  Likewise, the Town reserves the right to remove the SRO from duty 

as an SRO in the SRO Program. 

 

5.3.5 Additionally, notwithstanding the foregoing, the School System understands 

that any and all information communicated or otherwise provided to the Town 

and/or gathered by the Town regarding a School System-initiated complaint or 

otherwise regarding the SRO, including but not limited to the School System’s 

annual evaluation of the SRO and/or the results of any School System 

investigation, is part of the SRO’s personnel file, is confidential pursuant to 

N.C.G.S. § 160A-168, and is not subject to inspection except as allowed by 

N.C.G.S. § 160A-168(c). 

 

5.4 The School System reserves the right to request that the contract services of an 

individual SRO be terminated if the principal-SRO relationship cannot, in the 

discretion of the School System, be successfully negotiated. 

 

6.0 Insurance and Indemnification. 

 

6.1 While working as an SRO in the SRO Program, the SRO shall have the same 

jurisdiction, powers, rights, privileges, and immunities (including those relating to the 

defense of civil actions and payment of judgments) as a law enforcement officer 

normally possesses.  While on duty at a school location, the SRO shall respond to 

requests and suggestions by the principal, but shall remain subject to the lawful 

operational commands of his / her superior officers in the Town. 

 

6.2 Except as may be provided for a remedy for breach of the financial obligations of this 

Agreement: 

 

6.2.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the School System shall indemnify and 

hold harmless the Town, its officials and officers (elected and non-elected), 

employees, agents, representatives, and consultants against any liability arising 

176



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  9 

 

out of or in connection with any of the operations or obligations of the School 

System, including but not limited to any said operations or obligations 

subcontracted or assigned to a different person or entity from any and all 

claims, demands, damages, losses, lawsuits, and other proceedings, judgments, 

causes of action, liabilities, civil penalties, charges, costs, and expenses, 

including without limitation attorneys’ fees, which are attributable to bodily or 

personal injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of 

tangible property caused by acts or omissions of the School System or anyone 

for whose acts the School System may be liable, regardless of whether or not 

such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified 

hereunder.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce 

other rights or obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a 

party or person described in this section. 

 

6.2.2 Likewise, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Town shall indemnify and 

hold harmless the School System, its officials and officers (elected and non-

elected), employees, agents, representatives, and consultants against any 

liability arising out of or in connection with any of the operations or obligations 

of the Town, including but not limited to any said operations or obligations 

subcontracted or assigned to a different person or entity from any and all 

claims, demands, damages, losses, lawsuits, and other proceedings, judgments, 

causes of action, liabilities, civil penalties, charges, costs, and expenses, 

including without limitation attorneys’ fees, which are attributable to bodily or 

personal injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of 

tangible property caused by acts or omissions of the Town or anyone for whose 

acts the Town may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, 

loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.  Such 

obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 

obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a party or person 

described in this section. 

 

6.3 The Town shall hold the School System free, harmless, and indemnified from and 

against any and all claims, suits, or causes of action arising out of allegations or unfair 

or unlawful employment practices brought by the SRO, which are attributable solely 

to the Town. 

 

7.0 Term of the Agreement.  The term of this Agreement is one (1) year commencing on July 1, 

2021 and ending on June 30, 2022.   
 

8.0 Notice.  Any notice or other communication provided for herein by a Party shall be in writing 

and served upon the other Party by either (A) hand-delivery, (B) electronic mail or facsimile 

transmission, and/or (C) by overnight courier service (with all fees prepaid) to the receiving 

Party as follows, or to any other address which either Party may hereafter designate for itself 

in writing: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

177



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  10 

 

FOR THE TOWN 

  
 

Town of Winterville 

2751 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

Telephone: (252) 215-2395 

Facsimile: (252) 215-2461 

Email: ryan.willhite@wintervillenc.com  

(Ryan Willhite, Chief of Police) 

With a Copy to: 

Town of Winterville 

2751 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

Telephone: (252) 215-2340 

Facsimile: (252) 215-2451 

Email: terri.parker@wintervillenc.com 

(Terri Parker, Town Manager) 
 

FOR THE SCHOOL SYSTEM 
 

Pitt County Schools 

School Security Department 

300 Sylvania Street 

Winterville, North Carolina 28950 

Telephone:  (252) 830-2313 

Facsimile:    (252) 830-1277 

Email:  jenkinj@pitt.k12.nc.us  

(John Jenkins, Security Specialist) 

Email:  hudsonj@pitt.k12.nc.us  

(Jeff Hudson, Security Specialist) 

With a Copy to: 

The Pitt County Board of Education 

1717 West Fifth Street 

Greenville, North Carolina 27834 

Telephone:  (252) 830-4227 

Facsimile:   (252) 830-0099 

Email:  ehodson@pitt.k12.nc.us  

(Emma J. Hodson, Attorney for The Pitt 

County Board of Education) 

 

If either Party hereto changes its address or other contact information for purposes of this 

Agreement, the Party so changing shall give the other Party appropriate written notice of 

change of address in the manner specified above.   

 

9.0 Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement may be terminated by either Party with or without 

cause (for convenience) upon sixty (60) days’ written notice to the other Party as provided in 

Section 8.0 herein. Termination of this Agreement may only be accomplished as provided 

herein.  In the event this Agreement is terminated, compensation will be made to the Town for 

all services performed prior to the date of termination. 

 

10.0 Arm’s Length Negotiation.  The Parties further agree that this Agreement is to be deemed to 

have been prepared jointly by the Parties hereto, after arm’s length negotiations, and that any 

ambiguity or uncertainty existing herein, if any, shall not be interpreted against the other Party.  

The Parties further agree to sign any and all instruments or documents necessary to carry out 

the full purpose and intent of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties 

and their successors in interest. 

 

11.0 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and 

supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, related to the 

subject matter of this Agreement.   

 

12.0 Amendment and Modification.  This Agreement may be modified or amended by mutual 

consent of the Parties as long as the amendment is executed in the same fashion as this 

Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties may develop additional policies and 

procedures by consent to implement this Agreement, including but not limited to policies and 

178

mailto:ryan.willhite@wintervillenc.com
mailto:terri.parker@wintervillenc.com
mailto:jenkinj@pitt.k12.nc.us
mailto:hudsonj@pitt.k12.nc.us
mailto:ehodson@pitt.k12.nc.us


Winterville PD SRO Agreement  11 

 

procedures regarding reporting requirements and sharing information between the School 

System and the Town.  Further, each Party may develop internal policies and procedures to 

implement their respective obligations under this Agreement. 

 

13.0 Consideration.  For and in consideration of the Town providing the SRO for participation in 

the SRO Program as described herein, the School System agrees to reimburse the Town for the 

cost of the SRO, as described in this Agreement. 

 

14.0 Severability.  The non-enforceability or illegality of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

render the other provisions unenforceable, illegal, or invalid. 

 

15.0 Headings.  The paragraph headings contained herein are only for convenience and reference, 

and are not intended to be part of this Agreement or in any manner to define, limit, or describe 

the scope and intent of this Agreement for the particular paragraph to which they refer. 

 

16.0 E-Verify Compliance.  The Parties shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 

64 of the North Carolina General Statues.  Further, if either Party utilizes a subcontractor, the 

Party shall require the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 

64 of the North Carolina General Statues.  The Parties represent that they and their 

subcontractors are in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North 

Carolina General Statutes.   

 

17.0 Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North 

Carolina.  The venue for initiation of any such action shall be Pitt County, North Carolina. 

 

18.0 No Third Party Benefits.  There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  Nothing 

in this Agreement shall create or give to third parties any claim or right of action against either 

of the Parties, or their employees, agents, contractors, officers, officials, governing boards, or 

successors in interest. 

 

19.0 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together constitute one and the same 

instrument. 

 

 IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the 

day and year first written above. 

 

THE PITT COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  TOWN OF AYDEN 

 

 

 

  

Ethan A. Lenker  Terri L. Parker 

Superintendent  Town Manager 

 

 

 

  

Matthew Johnson  Ryan Willhite 

Assistant Superintendent of Operations  Chief of Police 

179



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  12 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

  

Emma J. Hodson 

Attorney for The Pitt County Board of 

Education 

 E. Keen Lassiter 

Town Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATION: 

 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 

Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

 

  

Debra Baggett 

Chief Financial Officer, Pitt County Schools 

 Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

180



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

 

 
PITT COUNTY SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM MANUAL 

2021-2022 

 

181



1 
 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM MANUAL 
2021-2022 

 
I. Goals of the SRO Program, Purpose of this Manual, and Prohibition on Unlawful 

Discrimination  
 
The Pitt County Board of Education is grateful for strong relationships with six law enforcement 
agencies.  Through the Board’s partnerships with the Ayden Police Department, Farmville Police 
Department, Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, Pitt County Sheriff’s 
Office, and Winterville Police Department, Pitt County Schools is able to have an efficient and 
cohesive School Resource Officer (“SRO”) Program with the primary goals of (1) providing a safe, 
inclusive, and positive learning environment for all students, educators, administrators, 
volunteers, and other members of the school community and (2) building positive relationships 
between law enforcement officers and school administrators, parents, and students. 
 
The purpose of this manual is to ensure that key stakeholders (i.e. principals, assistant principals, 
central office staff, and SROs) have a clear understanding of the role and duties of SROs, the 
role and duties of school system administrators, how SROs and school system administrators 
should collaborate to achieve the goals of the SRO program, and limitations on the relationship 
between SROs and the school system. 
 
All key stakeholders should be aware that the SRO Program is to be operated without 
discrimination against any person on the basis of sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin, 
age or disability.  Under no circumstances will any stakeholder, the Board, or representative of 
the law enforcement agencies supplying SROs engage in any conduct in violation of state or 
federal anti-discrimination law in their interactions with students, including but not limited to any 
retaliation for reporting, alleging, or filing complaints concerning any alleged discrimination. 
 
II. The Imposition of School Discipline 

 
A. Routine Disciplinary Matters 

 
1. Principals and assistant principals (“school administrators”) shall be solely responsible 

for implementing the Student Code of Conduct and school discipline policies.  School 
administrators, not the SROs, have primary responsibility for maintaining order in the 
school environment and for investigating and responding to school disciplinary matters. 

 
2. The SRO shall refer any reports or concerns relating to student discipline to the principal 

or designee of the school where the student conduct arises and shall not independently 
investigate or administer consequences for violations of the Student Code of Conduct or 
any school disciplinary rules. 

 
3. The SRO should generally not have any involvement in routine disciplinary matters, such 

as tardiness, loitering, noncompliance, the use of inappropriate language, dress code 
violations, minor classroom disruptions, and disrespectful behaviors and other similar 
minor infractions of school rules unless such actions rise to the level of a criminal act.1 

 
4. School administrators shall only request SRO assistance when necessary to protect the 

physical safety of staff, students, or others. 

 
1 For purposes of this Manual, the word crime or criminal includes delinquency. 

182



2 
 

 
5. The SRO will not be involved in the questioning of students initiated and conducted by 

school personnel in disciplinary matters unless requested by a school administrator to 
maintain a safe and secure school environment.  If the SRO’s presence is requested 
under these circumstances, the SRO shall limit his or her involvement to only what is 
reasonably necessary, based on his or her own observations, training, and experience, 
to protect the safety and security of members of the school community.  The SRO shall 
not lead the investigation or actively question students. 

 
B. Joint Law Enforcement and School Disciplinary Investigations 
 

1. In cases where school disciplinary investigations and law enforcement investigations into 
criminal activity overlap and relate to matters affecting health or safety (e.g., when both 
a school administrator and an SRO are investigating matters related to the presence of 
drugs or weapons on campus), it may be appropriate for school administrators and SROs 
to work in tandem.  In such events, the law enforcement investigation takes precedence 
over school disciplinary issues.  In such circumstances, the SRO shall be mindful of and 
clarify his or her role as a law enforcement officer conducting a law enforcement 
investigation when interviewing student witnesses, particularly students suspected of 
criminal wrongdoing. 

 
III. Investigation of Criminal Matters 

 
A. SRO Initiated Investigations into Criminal Activity at School 
 

1. SROs may initiate appropriate law enforcement actions to address criminal matters, 
including matters that threaten the safety and security of the school or its occupants, 
and/or intervene with staff or students (with or without a referral from a school 
administrator) when necessary to ensure the immediate safety of persons in the school 
environment in light of an actual or imminent threat to health or safety. 

 
2. However, any such intervention shall be reasonable in scope and duration in light of the 

nature of the circumstances presented and shall be reasonably calculated to protect the 
physical safety of members within the school community, while minimizing, to the extent 
possible, any unintended negative effects on students. 

 
3. Additionally, all law enforcement actions and interventions to protect the safety of others 

and the SRO shall be consistent with all applicable laws, regulations, and policies. 
 

4. SROs shall assess allegations of potential criminal activity committed on or adjacent to 
school property to determine whether further actions by law enforcement are required.   

 
a. An SRO shall intervene in all situations involving mandatory reportable 

offenses (i.e. assault resulting in serious personal injury, sexual assault, 
sexual offense, rape, kidnapping, indecent liberties with a minor, assault 
involving the use of a weapon, possession of a firearm in violation of the law, 
possession of a weapon in violation of the law, or possession of a controlled 
substance in violation of the law).  In situations involving mandatory 
reportable offenses, the SRO shall report the offense to his or her agency 
for investigation.  The decision to pursue legal action shall be in the 
discretion of the law enforcement agency, the District Attorney, and/ or the 

183



3 
 

court.   
 

b. In situations involving non-reportable offenses, the SRO shall make an effort 
to divert cases from the court system when appropriate.   

 
5. It is understood by the Parties that an SRO may use reasonable force when, based on 

the SRO’s observations, training, and experience, the force is necessary to protect the 
safety and security of members of the school environment and comports with the SRO’s 
law enforcement agency’s procedures and protocols and all applicable laws. 

 
6. SROs shall also, whenever possible, advise the principal before requesting additional 

law enforcement assistance on campus and shall request such assistance only when 
necessary to protect the safety or security of those present on the school campus. 

 
7. Criminal investigations, arrests, and taking juveniles into temporary custody in 

accordance with Section 7B-1901 of the North Carolina General Statutes by SROs will 
be conducted in accordance with all applicable legal requirements, including all 
applicable laws, regulations, and policies governing the use of force, interrogations, 
searches, and arrests. 

 
B. Investigative (Searches, Questioning, etc.), Temporary Custody, and Arrest 

Procedures 
 

1. An SRO shall promptly notify a school administrator whenever he or she asks a student 
questions of an investigative nature or takes any direct law enforcement action against 
a student; however, notification may be withheld until deemed appropriate by the SRO if 
such notification would endanger a student or any other person or compromise an 
ongoing criminal investigation.   

 
2. An SRO shall promptly notify a school administrator and the parent(s) or guardian(s) of 

any student arrested for a criminal offense or taken into temporary custody pursuant to 
Section 7B-1900 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

 

3. All SRO questioning or searches of students suspected of criminal wrongdoing and/or 
searches of property by an SRO must be in accordance with applicable law.  In particular, 
SROs and school administrators should be familiar with the differing standards governing 
searches by law enforcement officers for law enforcement purposes as compared with 
searches by school administrators in connection with student discipline.  Except as set 
out in Paragraph 1 of this Subsection, SROs should contact a school administrator 
before questioning or searching a student regarding an investigation into suspected 
criminal activity to determine if a school administrator should be present during the 
questioning or searching. 

 

4. If an SRO questions, searches, arrests, or takes a student into temporary custody at 
school, all reasonable efforts will be made by the SRO and a school administrator to 
remove the student from other students and/ or bystanders or otherwise to minimize 
attention to the student. 

 

5. At no time shall any SRO request that any PCS employee lead or conduct a search of a 
student for law enforcement purposes or request that a PCS employee act as an agent 
of law enforcement.  At no time shall a school administrator or PCS employee request 
that an SRO conduct a search of a student for school disciplinary investigations. 

184



4 
 

 
6. The SRO shall participate in searches of students or their belongings in school 

disciplinary investigations only if their assistance is requested by school personnel and 
the SRO agrees, based on his or her observations, training, and experience, that the 
requested assistance is necessary to maintain a safe and secure school environment. 

 
C. Non-School Investigations 

 
1. SROs shall refrain from questioning students at school regarding non-school related 

matters unless the    SRO has a warrant or unless questioning, searching, arresting, or 
taking a student into temporary custody on school property at that time is necessary, in 
the discretion of the SRO, for the success of a law enforcement investigation or to 
prevent injury or crime. 

 
IV. SROs as a Mentors and Members of the School Community 

 
A. The SRO shall conduct himself or herself as a role model at all times and in all facets of 

his or her work and shall seek to establish a strong rapport with school administrators, 
faculty, staff, students, parents, and others associated with the school.  SROs shall also 
encourage students to develop positive attitudes towards the school, education, law 
enforcement officers, and positive living in general. 

 
B. SROs are strongly encouraged to attend meetings held during the SRO’s regular duty 

hours of parent and faculty groups to solicit their support and understanding of the SRO 
Program and to promote awareness of law enforcement functions. 

 
C. SROs shall be familiar with community agencies that offer assistance to students and their 

families, including but not limited to mental health services and drug treatment centers, 
and shall provide information on such agencies to students, parents, and/ or school 
administrators when appropriate.  In addition and when appropriate, the SRO shall provide 
information to school administrators, students, and parents regarding additional resources 
offered by community agencies or the agencies providing afterschool and summer 
programs and opportunities for youth. 

 
D. SROs may answer questions and /or provide general information regarding North Carolina 

criminal or juvenile laws but should not to give legal advice. 
 
E. SROs shall attend meetings held during the SRO’s regular duty hours of Students Against 

Destructive Decisions (SADD) groups in schools and SADD groups as requested.  SADD 
groups are student-run programs that educate the school community about issues related 
to drug and alcohol abuse, sexual activity, depression, bullying, and suicide within the 
student population.   

 
F. SROs shall, whenever possible and in accordance with guidance from the school principal 

or designee, participate in or attend school functions during the SRO’s regular duty hours, 
in order to assist in the safe operation of school-related programs.   

 
G. SROs shall wear the official law enforcement uniform or other apparel approved by their 

respective law enforcement agencies at all times while on-duty and serving on school 
property and shall make best efforts to maintain high visibility at all times when practical 
and safe to do so, especially in areas where incidents of crime or violence are most likely 

185



5 
 

to occur. 
 
H. Unless approved in writing by the head of the SRO’s agency, SROs are not to be used on 

a daily or routine basis for traffic direction at or adjacent to school property.     
 

I. The SRO shall remain on the school grounds in accordance with the schedule agreed 
upon between the school system and the SRO Supervisor.  Any changes to this schedule 
and any SRO substitutions should be communicated by the SRO Supervisor to the 
Security Specialist and principals of any affected schools with as much advance notice as 
possible under the circumstances. 
 

V. Communication Between School Administrators and SROs 
 
A. At the School Level 

 
1. Open communication between SROs and school principals is encouraged at all times to 

ensure a collaborative and productive relationship. 
 

2. SROs, school administrators, and designees of the school principals are expected to 

meet on a regular basis, both formally and informally, to discuss school safety concerns, 
duties, and responsibilities.  SROs, school administrators, and designees of school 

principals are all expected to initiate such meetings to promote open and strong 
communication. 

 
3. Principals are authorized by the Board and are expected to timely report any alleged 

criminal activities that occur on campus to the assigned SRO in compliance with all 
applicable state laws and relevant Board policies.   

 
a. Presently, criminal offenses that must be immediately reported to the SRO include: 

(1) assault resulting in serious personal injury; (2) assault involving the use of a 
weapon; (3) assault on school officials, employees, or volunteers; (4) making bomb 
threats or engaging in bomb hoaxes; (5) willfully burning a school building; (6) 
homicide; (7) kidnapping; (8) unlawful, underage sales, purchase, provision, 
possession, or consumption of alcoholic beverages; (9) possession of controlled 
substances in violation of law; (10) possession of a firearm; (11) possession of a 
weapon; (12) rape; (13) robbery with a dangerous weapon; (14) sexual assault (not 
involving rape or sexual offense); (15) sexual offense; and (16) taking indecent 
liberties with a minor. 

 
B. With General Administration and Principals 

 
1. During the months of September 2021 through June 2022, the SRO Supervisor shall 

provide to the PCS Security Specialist a monthly report of the aggregated number of 
referrals.  A copy of these reports must be transmitted to the Security Specialist no later 
than the fifth day of the following month (e.g. the report for September 2021 should be 
transmitted no later than October 5, 2021). 

 
2. During the months of September 2021 through June 2022, the SRO Supervisor shall 

provide to the Security Specialist a report of all school-based or related actions taken by 
that agency’s SROs and all matters that were referred to the court system within that 
reporting period.  These reports will also include information known to the SRO 

186



6 
 

Supervisor or his or her agency regarding the outcome of any matter referred to the court 
system (if the matter has been decided in the reporting period) and the involvement of 
Pitt County Schools or an individual school in the proceeding (e.g. if district employees 
or students were called as witnesses).  A copy of these reports must be transmitted to 
the Security Specialist no later than the fifth day of the following month (e.g. the report 
for September 2021 should be transmitted no later than October 5, 2021). 

 
3. During the months of September 2021 through June 2022, SROs shall complete monthly 

security assessments for each of the SROs’ assigned schools.  The SRO Supervisor will 
provide copies of the security assessment reports completed by SROs to the Security 
Specialist and respective principals no later than the last day of the month (e.g. the report 
for September 2021 is due no later than September 30, 2021). 

 
VI. Transporting PCS Students  

 
A. SROs shall not transport any students in their vehicles unless either (1) the student is a 
victim of a crime and is being transported to a medical facility or to the SRO’s law enforcement 
agency or (2) the student is under arrest or has been taken into temporary custody. 

 
B. SROs shall notify the principal before removing a student from campus. 

 
C. SROs shall not transport students in their personal vehicles.  If an SRO does not have an 

agency vehicle, then a patrol unit shall be dispatched to assist the SRO. 
 
VII. Sharing Education Records 

 
A. Pitt County Schools officials are required to comply with the Family Educational Rights 

and Privacy Act (“FERPA”).  Under FERPA, education records (i.e. records, files, 
documents, and other materials, including security footage, that are directly related to a 
student and maintained by Pitt County Schools or by parties acting for Pitt County Schools) 
may only be disclosed to SROs in certain circumstances.   
 

B. SROs shall not automatically have access to educational records or personally identifiable 
information about a student in those records simply because they are conducting a 
criminal investigation involving a student or for general non-specific purposes.  
Circumstances where school officials may disclose relevant educational records and 
personally identifiable information contained in those records with SROs include, the 
following: 
 

1. The student’s parent or the guardian or the student (if 18 years of age or older) consents 
in writing to disclose education records to the SRO; 

 
a. NOTE: Consent must be obtained using Pitt County Schools’ FERPA Authorization 

Form which is included in this manual as Appendix I. 
 

2. The information sought (again for a specific purpose) is directory information (e.g. 
student home address, student phone number, etc.); 

 
a. NOTE: Students’ parents or guardians or students who are 18 years of age or older 

may opt out of sharing directory information.  School system officials are NOT 
permitted to share directory information if an opt out has occurred.  

187



7 
 

 
b. ALSO NOTE: School officials may not confirm non-directory information to an SRO.  

For example, if an SRO provides a student’s name and social security number (or 
other non-directory information) to school officials and is seeking additional 
directory information, school officials may not use a social security number or other 
non-directory information to search for the student’s records as opposed to a name 
because using non-directory information to search for a student is considered to be 
confirming the accuracy of non-directory information to the SRO. 

 
3. Pursuant to a subpoena, warrant, or other court order; 

 
a. NOTE: Prior to complying with a warrant, subpoena, or other court order, FERPA 

requires school officials to make a reasonable effort to notify the parent, guardian, 
or student who is over 18 years of age of the subpoena or court order to give an 
opportunity to the parent, guardian, or eligible student to object or seek other 
protective action.  School officials should contact in-house counsel upon the receipt 
of any warrant or subpoena seeking educational records.  A template of an Order 
for Release of Educational Records that legal counsel for SROs may utilize to 
obtain education records is included in this manual as Appendix II. 

 
b. ALSO NOTE: There are three situations where making a reasonable effort to notify 

parents, guardians, or students over 18 years of age is not required: (1) a court 
issuing a federal grand jury subpoena may direct school officials to keep the 
existence or contents of the subpoena confidential even as to the involved student 
and/ or parents; (2) a subpoena issued for any other law enforcement purpose may 
similarly direct the school to keep the subpoena confidential; and (3) federal law 
enforcement authorities may obtain ex parte secret subpoenas of student records 
in terrorism investigations. 

 
c. An SRO who is taking steps to obtain a warrant, subpoena, other court order, or 

parental consent to obtain FERPA protected records, may ask school 
administrators or the School Security Department to preserve relevant FERPA 
protected records, including security camera footage, prior to obtaining the warrant, 
subpoena, other court order, or parental consent.  Upon receiving a request for 
preservation from the SRO, school administrators and the School Security 
Department shall secure and prevent the destruction of any records requested by 
the SRO, including those records that may be maintained by other custodians (e.g. 
teachers), until the SRO provides a warrant or written parental consent.  Upon 
producing the warrant or written parental consent, school administrators or the 
School Security Department will produce the requested records to the SRO. 

 
4. A health or safety emergency exists; 

 
a. NOTE: School officials may disclose educational records under this exception to 

“appropriate persons” without consent in connection with an emergency when 
school officials perceive an “articulable and significant threat” to the health or safety 
of the student or others under the totality of the circumstances.   

 
i. The standard for when a health or safety emergency exists is flexible.  School 

officials should generally not release education records based on a not fully 
formed sense that a student “might” do something at some indeterminate point 

188



8 
 

in the future, but they are also not required to delay a release until the moment 
a student is on-campus with a gun.  Ultimately, school officials need to be able 
to articulate a basis for reasonably believing that a student poses a significant 
risk of harm to himself or herself or others. 

 
ii. Examples of articulable threats might include (but are not limited to) students 

making statements about suicide or violence toward others, displaying 
unusually erratic or angry behaviors, or engaging in similar conduct that school 
officials would reasonably see as posing a risk of serious harm.  By contrast, 
merely knowing that a student has access to a large cache of weapons at 
home—without accompanying behavioral red flags—would likely not rise to the 
level of an articulable or significant threat. 

 
b. SROs and other law enforcement officials are considered appropriate persons who 

need information to protect the health or safety of the student or others. 
 

5. Records concern registered sex offenders and the information was provided to school 
officials pursuant to federal law (i.e. Jacob Wetterling Crimes Against Children and 
Sexually Violent Offender Registration Act). 

 
C. School officials and SROs should be aware that it is the position of Pitt County Schools 

that Section 7B-3100 of the North Carolina General Statutes does not create a FERPA 
exception that allows for the sharing of records related to the “juvenile justice system.”  
However, FERPA does permit school officials to report child abuse and neglect to DSS. 
 

D. Information obtained through a school official’s personal knowledge or observation (e.g. a 
teacher overhears a student make a threatening remark, observes a change in a student’s 
behavior, or reads a threat posted on the school’s social media page) is not an education 
record and can be disclosed to SROs even if an education record exists containing the 
information.   
 

1. NOTE: The general rule that personal knowledge and observations can be shared with 
law enforcement DOES NOT apply to school officials who have a role in making a 
determination that generates a protected educational record (e.g. a psychologist may 
not disclose to an SRO information learned about a student’s behavior that the 
psychologist used in a report or assessment to determine a student’s eligibility for special 
education; a principal may not advise an SRO that a student is suspended; etc.).   

 
VIII. Evaluation of SROs and Complaints Regarding Program Participants 

 
A. Each SRO is employed by either the Ayden Police Department, Farmville Police 

Department, Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, Pitt County 
Sheriff’s Office, or Winterville Police Department.  Although personnel decisions are 
ultimately made by an SRO’s employer, principals shall provide annual advisory 
evaluations of SROs utilizing a form developed by the Board and these six law 
enforcement agencies.  The Pitt County Schools Security Specialist shall collect 
evaluation forms from principals and solicit feedback from the superintendent and other 
administrators annually.  The Security Specialist shall then submit the evaluation forms 
and any other feedback to the applicable law enforcement agency. 
 

B. In addition to annual evaluations, principals and school system administrators should 

189



9 
 

immediately advise the Security Specialist, in writing, if an SRO is not effectively 
performing his or her duties or responsibilities and/or a staff member, student, parent, or 
other member of the school community has complained about actions of the SRO.  
Depending on where the SRO is employed, the Security Specialist will forward any written 
complaints to the officer supervising the SRO made the subject of the complaint by the 
end of the workday following the workday on which the complaint is received.  The Security 
Specialist will then undertake an investigation into the allegations of the complaint, gather 
written witness statements from any individuals with information relevant to the complaint, 
and shall complete a written report of the investigator’s findings and conclusion as to 
whether the allegations of the complaint were substantiated or not.  The written report 
shall also be submitted to the subject SRO’s supervising officer within one work day from 
its completion. 
 

C. SROs shall immediately notify the SRO Supervisor in writing of any credible complaint 
received from a staff member, student, parent, or other member of the school community, 
or of any incident an SRO observes, involving the use of inappropriate or excessive 
physical force by a teacher, school administrator, or other School System employee or 
volunteer.  The SRO Supervisor shall then forward any such complaint to the School 
System Security Specialist.  

190



10 
 

APPENDIX I 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR RELEASE OF EDUCATION RECORDS 
 

I, ________________________________________ (name of parent/guardian/student if 18 or older), hereby give 

permission for officials of Pitt County Schools to disclose confidential education records of the Student, 

__________________________________________ (name of student), and/or any personally identifiable 

information contained in those education records to the following (name of recipient and address): 
 

 

 

 
 

The education records governed by this waiver shall include (check all that apply): 
 

 Transcripts, report cards, and other grade reports 
 

 

 Attendance information 
 

 

 Disciplinary records 
 

 

 Cumulative file 
 

 

 Special education file 
 

 

 Immunization records 
 

 

 Other health records 
 

 

 Other (please specify):  
 

These records may be disclosed (check one): 
 

 Upon the authorized person’s request; OR 
 

 One time only, upon execution of this consent. 
 

This information is provided for the following purpose: 
 

 To provide relevant information to the Student’s medical provider(s); 
 

 To assist in meeting the Student’s educational needs; OR 
 

 Other (please specify):  

 

I understand that I may revoke this authorization at any time by providing my signed written notice to the 

appropriate Pitt County Schools officials.  Absent such notice, this authorization shall expire on 

_________________________________ (date). 
 

I acknowledge that this form constitutes my written consent to release written consent to the release of confidential, 

personally identifiable information that is protected under the federal Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 

(FERPA) and state law governing the confidentiality of student records and personally identifiable information 

contained in such records.  I certify that I am more than eighteen years old and that I have authority to execute this 

authorization. 
   

Signature of parent/guardian/student 18 or older  Date 

   

Name (please print)   

   

Address City State             Zip 

191



11 
 

 

APPENDIX II-COURT ORDER TEMPLATE 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF PITT 

IN THE GENERAL COURT OF JUSTICE 
DISTRICT COURT DIVISION 

 
 
 
IN RE: __________________________ 

 
 
 

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF EDUCATIONAL 
RECORDS 

 
 
 

 

THIS CAUSE HAVING COME ON TO BE HEARD before the undersigned District Court Judge 

presiding, and it appears to the court: 

 

1. That there is an ongoing criminal investigation by **OFFICER’S NAME** of the **NAME OF LAW 

ENFORCEMENT AGENCY** regarding **TYPE OF INCIDENT** that occurred on or about **DATE 

OF INCIDENT** which is a violation of the North Carolina General Statute ______. 

 

2. That the alleged offenses occurred at ________ School, a public school that is part of the Pitt 

County Public School System. 

 

3. Upon information and belief, **INFORMATION YOU ARE SEEKING** (for example there is video 

surveillance of the crime scene and there are statements to school administrators made by four 

students associated with this investigation). 

 

4. Upon information and belief, said video surveillance and student statements are considered 

"education records" of one or more public school students under the Family Educational Rights 

and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, and its implementing regulations, and contain 

information relevant and material to the investigation described above. 

 

5. Under the relevant FERPA regulation, 34 C.F.R § 99.3l(a)(9), an educational agency or institution 

may disclose personally identifiable information from an education record of a student without 

written parental consent if the disclosure is to comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued 

subpoena. The same regulation also provides that the educational agency or institution may make 

such disclosures only if the agency or institution makes a reasonable effort to notify the parent or 

eligible student of the order or subpoena in advance of compliance, so that the parent or eligible 

student may seek protective action. 

 

6. That it is in the best interest of justice and the enforcement of the laws of the State of North 

Carolina to have this information disclosed to law enforcement for use in the criminal investigation 

described above, subject to the rights of the parent or eligible student whose records would be 

disclosed to seek protective action from this Court prior to disclosure. 

 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that any **INFORMATION YOU ARE SEEKING** contained in student 

education records maintained by school officials at ________ School as described in this Order be 

released to **OFFICER’S NAME** of the **NAME OF LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY** for use in the 

criminal investigation of this matter, after appropriate school officials have first provided reasonable notice 

to the parents or eligible students of their rights to seek protective action from this Court. 

 

This the_____ of ________, 20___. 
 
     _____________________________ 
     Presiding Judge

192



 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

SRO PROGRAM MANUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

(To be Completed by ALL SROs, Principals, and Assistant Principals) 

 
I, ___________________________________ (print name), am a key stakeholder in the success of Pitt 

County Schools’ SRO Program. 

 

As a key stakeholder, I acknowledge that the success of the SRO Program requires collaboration between 

principals, assistant, principals and SROs and a clear understanding of the roles and duties of school 

administrators and SROs.   

 

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read the SRO Program Manual developed by the Pitt County 

Board of Education and local law enforcement agencies to develop an understanding of the roles and duties 

of school administrators and SROs.   

 

Principal/AP/ SRO Signature:  

  

  Date:  

    
 

**THIS FORM SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO THE PITT COUNTY SCHOOLS SECURITY DEPARTMENT ON 

OR BEFORE OCTOBER 31, 2021.  THE FORM SHOULD BE SENT VIA E-MAIL TO JOHN JENKINS 

(jjenkins@pitt.k12.nc.us).  

 

 

 

193

mailto:jjenkins@pitt.k12.nc.us


 
 

ATTACHMENT C 

SRO PERFORMANCE EVALUATION METRIC 2021-2022 ACADEMIC YEAR 

(TO BE COMPLETED BY SCHOOL SYSTEM ADMINISTRATORS) 
 

School Name:   
 

Completed By: 
  

 

Date Completed: 
  

 

SRO Name: 
   

    

Please respond to each of the following by writing either YES or NO. 
  

Question Response 

Q1: SRO remains on campus during normal school hours, except when necessary 

to attend to a law enforcement emergency, trainings, meetings, or official law 

enforcement business off-campus. 

 

Q2: SRO makes best efforts to maintain high visibility at all times when practical 

and safe to do so, especially in areas where incidents of crime or violence are 

most likely to occur. 

 

Q3: SRO participates in or attend school functions during regular duty hours in 

order to assure the peaceful operation of school-related programs. 

 

Q4: SRO conducts himself/ herself as a role model at all times and in all facets of 

the job and seeks to establish a strong rapport with staff, faculty, students, and 

others associated with the school and encourages students to develop positive 

attitudes toward school, education, law enforcement officers, and positive 

living in general. 

 

Q5: SRO initiates appropriate law enforcement actions to address criminal 

matters, including matter that threaten the safety and security of the school or 

its occupants, and/or intervenes with staff or students (with or without a 

referral from school staff) when necessary to ensure the immediate safety of 

persons in the school environment in light of an actual or imminent threat to 

health or safety. 

 

Q6: SRO refers any reports or concerns relating to student discipline to the 

principal or designees and does not independently investigate or administer 

consequences for violations of the Student Code of Conduct or any school 

disciplinary rules. 

 

Q7: SRO meets with principal and members of the administrative team 

designated by the principal on a regular basis, both formally and informally, 

to discuss school safety concerns, duties, and responsibilities. 

 

Q8: SRO reports any safety concerns to the school principal and/or designee and 

confers with the school principal to develop plans and strategies to prevent 

and/or minimize dangerous situations on or near the campus involving 

students at school-related activities. 

 

*If you would like to provide any comments regarding your SRO or the SRO Program and/or if an 

answer above was NO, please complete the comments form below. 
 

Comments: 

 

 

 

 

194



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Eleven at Main. 

Action Requested: Approval of Preliminary Plat. 

Attachment: Preliminary Plat / Site Plan, and Special Use Permit. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/28/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/2/2021 ☒ TM: 8/4/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Eleven at Main – Preliminary Plat: 

 

Location: Intersection of Hwy 11 S and Main Street. 

 

Parcel Numbers: 05589. 

 

Site Data: 20.43 Acres, 154 Lots/Units. 

 

Zoning District: MR 

 

❖ Special Use Permit approved by Board of Adjustment on May 18, 2021 
❖ Planning and Zoning Board unanimously approved the Preliminary Plat on July 19, 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Recommend Approval of Preliminary Plat. 

 

195



196



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

PITT COUNTY 

NORTH CAROLINA 

ORDER APPROVING 

A Special Use Permit 

The Board of Adjustment for the Town of Winterville held a public hearing on May 18, 2021, to 
consider an application submitted by the Applicant, Britt Development Company of Archdale, LLC, for a 
Special Use Permit for a Single-Family Attached Development on the property located on Parcel 05589 in 
Winterville, North Carolina. As presented by the Applicant, the development will consist of approximately 130 
(up to 170) single-family attached dwelling units in 25 buildings, along with associated driveways, storm 
drainage, and utilities. 

Having heard all of the evidence and arguments presented at the public hearing, the Board of 
Adjustment makes the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 

(1) Conditions and Specifications. That the application filed as a Special Use Permit for Parcel 05589
meets all of the required conditions and specifications of the Zoning Ordinance and policies of the Town
for a submission of a Special Use Permit.

(2) Notice. That those persons owning property adjacent to the proposed development or use, as listed on
the current tax records, were served notice of the public hearing by mail in accordance with applicable
requirements; and that notice of public hearing to consider the Special Use Permit was published on
May 5, 2021 and May 12, 2021 in the Daily Reflector, a newspaper having general circulation in the
area, and required by law.

(3) To hear and decide, in particular cases, and subject to appropriate conditions and safeguards, permits for
special uses as authorized by Article VI. In granting a Special Use Permit, the Board shall make the
following affirmative findings:

a) The Use requested is among those listed as an eligible Special Use in the district in
which the subject property is located;

b) That the Special Use will not materially endanger the public health or safety iflocated
where proposed and developed according to the plan as proposed;

c) That the Special Use meets all required conditions and specifications:

a No multi-family dwellings or series of attached single-family, multi-family buildings or 
other such arrangements shall exceed a length of one hundred fifty 
(150) feet when measured along the longest axis of the building or series of attached units
when placed in a theoretical straight alignment.

b. 1. No multi-family development shall contain more than twenty (20) dwelling units
unless the development shall have frontage along and direct primary access on a major or
minor thoroughfare as shown on the Thoroughfare Plan.

197



198



199



Curb Project at A.G. Cox 
 
From: "Manning, Thomas" <mannint@pitt.k12.nc.us> 
Date: August 4, 2021 at 2:46:24 PM EDT 
To: Tony Moore <tony.moore@wintervillenc.com> 
Subject: Curb project 
Be Advised: This email originated from outside of the Town of Winterville, NC 
 
 
Mr.  Moore, 
 
As you know the Watermelon festival is a big fundraiser for the AG Cox athletic 
department.  We have 2 gates to access the field for parking cars.  The gate at the 
baseball field has a curb and we usually build a ramp for cars to access the parking area.  
We would like the town to knock out the curb to give cars easier access to the field.  This 
photo is the spot in question on Blount street.(left field of the baseball field)  The second 
image is what we have at the softball field to give you a better picture of what we are 
looking for. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
 
Coach Manning 
 
Tom Manning 
Physical Education Teacher 
A.G. Cox 
Winterville, NC 28590 
 
Message Sent from PCS GMail 

200



Designation of Railroad Street as Martin Luther King Street and speed bumps for the 
same area. 
 
 
On Aug 5, 2021, at 7:56 AM, Veronica Roberson <veronica.roberson@wintervillenc.com> 
wrote: 
 
I would like to see the Designation of Railroad as Martin Luther King Street and speed 
bumps for the same area placed on the agenda. 
 
Sent from my iPad 
Veronica W. Roberson 
Councilwoman 
Town of Winterville 

201


	00_Agenda_20210809v3_amended
	01_Agenda_Packet
	06_01a_PH_Abstract_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3v2
	06_01b_Applicaiton_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3
	06_01c_Map_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3
	06_01d_Legal_Description_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3
	06_01e_Notice_Reflector_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3
	06_01f_PH_Notice_of_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3
	06_01g_Address_Labels_Adjacent_Owners_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3
	06_01h_Staff_Report_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3
	06_01i_Ordinance_21-O-081_Rezoning_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3
	08_01a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	08_01b_20210525_Budget_Work_Session_#1_Minutes_DRAFT
	08_01c_20210527_Budget_Work_Session_#2_Minutes_DRAFT
	08_01d_20210607_Budget_Public_Hearing_Minutes_DRAFT
	08_01e_20210614_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_DRAFT
	08_02a_Consent_Abstract_Set_PH_Sutton_Capital_Rezoningv2
	08_02b_Application_Sutton_Capital_Rezoning
	08_02c_Map_Sutton_Capital_Rezoning
	08_02d_Legal_Description_Sutton_Capital_Rezoning
	08_02e_Notice_Sutton_Capital_Rezoning
	08_02f_Address_Labels_Adjacent_Owners_Sutton_Capital_Rezoning
	08_02g_Staff_Report_Sutton_Capital_Rezoning
	08_03a_Consent_Abstract_Set_PH_Aquatic_Holdings_Rezoningv2
	08_03b_Application_Aquatic_Holdings_Rezoning
	08_03c_Map_Aquatic_Holdings_Rezoning
	08_03d_Legal_Description_Aquatic_Holdings_Rezoning
	08_03e_Notice_Aquatic_Holdings_Rezoning
	08_03f_Address_Labels_Adjacent_Owners_Aquatic_Holdings_Rezoning
	08_03g_Staff_Report_Aquatic_Holdings_Rezoning
	08_04a_Consent_Abstract_Set_PH_Alfred_McLawhorn_Rezoningv2
	08_04b_Application_Alfred_McLawhorn_Rezoning
	08_04c_Map_Alfred_McLawhorn_Rezoning
	08_04d_Legal_Description_Alfred_McLawhorn_Rezoning
	08_04e_Notice_Alfred_McLawhorn_Rezoning
	08_04f_Address_Labels_Adjacent_Owners_Alfred_McLawhorn_Rezoning
	08_04g_Staff_Report_Alfred_McLawhorn_Rezoning
	08_05a_Consent_Abstract_Set_PH_Pitt_County_Farms_Rezoningv2
	08_05b_Application_Pitt_County_Farms_Rezoning
	08_05c_Map_Pitt_County_Farms_Rezoning
	08_05d_Legal_Description_Pitt_County_Farms_Rezoning
	08_05e_Notice_Pitt_County_Farms_Rezoning
	08_05f_Address_Labels_Adjacent_Owners_Pitt_County_Farms_Rezoning
	08_05g_Staff_Report_Pitt_County_Farms_Rezoning
	08_06a_Consent_Abstract_Direct_Cert_Suff_Interconnect_Site_Annexv2
	08_06b_Petition_Winterville_Interconnect_Site_Annex
	08_06c_Map_Winterville_Interconnect_Site_Annex
	Sheets and Views
	SRVY_18x24 (L)


	08_06d_Legal_Description_Winterville_Interconnect_Site_Annex
	08_06e_Resolution_21-R-081_Winterville_Interconnect_Site_Annex
	08_07a_Consent_Abstract_Direct_Cert_Suff_Old_Tar_Rd_PS_Annexv2
	08_07b_Petition_Old_Tar_Rd_PS_Annex
	08_07c_Map_Old_Tar_Rd_PS_Annex
	Sheets and Views
	SRVY_18x24 (L)


	08_07d_Legal_Description_Old_Tar_Rd_PS_Annex
	08_07e_Resolution_21-R-082_Old_Tar_Rd_PS_Annex
	08_08a_Consent_Abstract_Fire_Dept_Sprinkler_Systemv2
	08_08b_WFD_Sprinkler_Project_Bid_Tabulation
	08_09a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amendment_21-22-1v2
	08_09b_Budget_Amendment_2021-2022-1
	08_10a_Consent_Abstract_Tax_Settlement_20-21v2
	08_10b_Tax Settlement 20-21
	08_11a_Consent_Abstract_Charge_Tax_Collector_21-22_tax_levy_v2
	08_12a_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Parade_Permit__Fee_Waiver_2021v2
	08_12a2_Watermelon_Festival_Parade_Route_2021
	08_12b_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Traffic__Parking_2021v2
	08_12c_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Park_Hours_2021v2
	08_12d_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Signs__Banners_2021v2
	08_12e_Consent_Abstract_WWFC Request to Use Bathroomsv2
	09_01a_Old_Abstract_RAB_Compositionv2
	09_01b_Ordinance_21-O-082_RAB_Composition_20210809
	09_02a_Old_Abstract_Pump Station Rehabilitationv2
	09_02b_Resolution_21-R-083_Loan_Acceptance_CS370879-03
	10_01a_New_Abstract_Stormwater_MS4_Permit_NOVv2
	10_01b_NCS000507_NOV_20210604
	10_01c_NCS000507_MS4_Audit_Report_20210601
	10_01d_20210728_MS4_NOV_Compliance_Resolution_21-R-084
	10_02a_New_Abstract_Wooten_Stormwater_Agreementv2
	10_02b_Wooten_Company_Task_Order_No_32
	10_03a_New_Abstract_21-22_SRO_Contractv2
	10_03b_WPD_Grant_Funded_SRO_Contract_21-22
	10_04a_New_Abstract_Prelim_Plat_Eleven_at_Mainv2
	10_04b_Preliminary_Plat_Site Plan_Eleven_at_Main
	10_04c_SUP_Executed_Parcel_05589_Eleven_at_Main

	11_01a_Curb_Project
	11_01b_Railroad Street Renaming and Speed Bumps



